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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT tel 20k 2en e

To the Members of Awfis Space Solutions Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Awfis Space Solutions Private Limited
(hereinafter referred to as “the Holding Company”), its subsidiary (the Holding Company and its subsidiary
together referred to as “the Group™) comprising of the consolidated Balance sheet as at March 31, 2022, the
consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, including other comprehensive income, the consolidated Cash Flow
Statement and the consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information (hereinafter referred to as “the consolidated financial statements™).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and based on the
consideration of reports of other auditors on separate financial statements and on the other financial information
of the subsidiary, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Companies
Act, 2013, as amended (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group as at March 31,
2022, their consolidated loss including other comprehensive income, their consolidated cash flows and the
consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
(SAs), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements” section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics’ issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the consolidated financial
statements.

Other Information

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the Director’s Report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If. based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information. we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Responsibilities of Management for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these
consolidated financial statements in terms of the requirements of the Act that give a true and fair view of the
consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance including other comprehensive income,
consolidated cash flows and consolidated statement of changes in equity of the Group in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified
under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended.
The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of their
respective companies and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design.
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement.
whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial
statements by the Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the companies included in
the Group are responsible for assessing the ability of their respective companies to continue as a going concern,
disclosing. as applicable, matters related to going concemn and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do
50.

Those respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are also responsible for overseeing
the financial reporting process of their respective companies.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. and to issue an auditor’s report that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

*  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery. intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

*  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing
our opinion on whether the Holding Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

*  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

*  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists. we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
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in the consolidated financial statements or. if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

= Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements. including
the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

*  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group of which we are the independent auditors, to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
audit of the financial statements of such entities included in the consolidated financial statements of which
we are the independent auditors. For the other entities included in the consolidated financial statements,
which have been audited by other auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the audits carried out by them. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other entities included
in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings. including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Other Matter

(a) We did not audit the financial statements and other financial information, in respect of | subsidiary, whose
financial statements include total assets of Rs 29.01 lakhs as at March 31, 2022, and total revenues of Rs Nil
and net cash inflows of Rs 1.14 lakhs for the year ended on that date. These financial statement and other
financial information have been audited by other auditors, which financial statements, other financial
information and auditor’s reports have been furnished to us by the management. Our opinion on the
consolidated financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of
this subsidiary. and our report in terms of sub-sections (3) of Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to
the aforesaid subsidiary. is based solely on the reports of such other auditors.

Our opinion above on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance on the work done
and the reports of the other auditors and the financial statements and other financial information certified by the
Management.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

I. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order™), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, based on our audit and on the
consideration of report of the other auditors on separate financial statements and the other financial information
of the subsidiary company. incorporated in India, as noted in the ‘Other Matter’ paragraph we give in the
“Annexure 17 a statement on the matters specified in paragraph 3(xxi) of the Order.

b

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act. based on our audit and on the consideration of report of the other
auditors on separate financial statements and the other financial information of subsidiary, as noted in the
“other matter” paragraph we report, to the extent applicable, that:

(a) We/the other auditors whose report we have relied upon have sought and obtained all the information and
explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of
the aforesaid consolidated financial statements;
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(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid
consolidation of the financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of those
books and reports of the other auditors:

The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of
Other Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement and Consolidated Statement of
Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account maintained for the
purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements;

In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as
amended;

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company as on March
31,2022 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and the reports of the statutory
auditors who are appointed under Section 139 of'the Act, of its subsidiary company, none of the directors of
the Group’s companies, incorporated in India. is disqualified as on March 31, 2022 from being appointed as
a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary company, incorporated in India, and the operating
effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure 27 to this report;

The provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act are not applicable to the Holding Company,
its subsidiary incorporated in India for the year ended March 31, 2022;

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us and based on the consideration of the report of the other auditors
on separate financial statements as also the other financial information of the subsidiary, as noted in the
*Other matter’ paragraph:

i.  The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on its consolidated
financial position of the Group in its consolidated financial statements — Refer note 33 to the
consolidated financial statements:

ii.  The Group did not have any material foreseeable losses in long-term contracts including derivative
contracts during the year ended March 31. 2022

iii. ~ There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Holding Company, its subsidiary, incorporated in India during the vear
ended March 31, 2022.

iv. a) The respective managements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary which are companies
incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited under the Act have represented
to us and the other auditors of such subsidiary respectively that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share
premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Holding Company or any of such subsidiary
to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries™). with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether,
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever
by or on behalf of the respective Holding Company or any of such subsidiary (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries:

b) The respective managements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary which are companies
incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited under the Act have represented
to us and the other auditors of such subsidiary respectively that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, no funds have been received by the respective Holding Company or any of such subsidiary
from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties™), with the
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understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Holding Company or any of such
subsidiary shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified
in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries: and

¢) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances performed by us and that performed by the auditors of the subsidiary which are
companies incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited under the Act,
nothing has come to our or other auditor’s notice that has caused us or the other auditors to believe
that the representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material mis-statement.

V) No dividend has been declared or paid during the year by the Holding Company, its subsidiary
company, incorporated in India.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

Ckuid Aggee wal
per Nikhil Aggarwal
Partner
Membership Number: 504274

UDIN: 22504274AWWWML8232

Place of Signature: Gurugram
Date: September 29, 2022
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Annexure 1 to the Auditor’s Report referred to in paragraph [1] of “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements” in our report of even date

Re: Awfis Space Solutions Private Limited (“the Company”)

xxi.  There are no qualifications or adverse remarks by the respective auditors in the Companies (Auditors
Report) Order (CARO) reports of the companies included in the consolidated financial statements.
Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable to the Holding
Company.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICALI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

CTIN 4 A«qﬂ&i’*‘“bﬂ
per Nikhil Aggatwal

Partner
Membership Number: 504274

UDIN: 22504274 AWWWML8232

Place of Signature: Gurugram
Date: September 29, 2022
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ANNEXURE 2 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF AWFIS SPACE SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMTED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of Awfis Space Solutions Private Limited
as of and for the year ended March 31, 2022, we have audited the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of Awfis Space Solutions Private Limited (hereinafter referred to as the “Holding Company™) which is
incorporated in India, as of that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the of the Holding Company which is the company incorporated in India,
are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the intemal control over
financial reporting criteria established by the Holding Company considering the essential components of internal
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its
assets. the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the company's internal financial controls over financial reporting
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™) and the Standards on Auditing, both, issued by Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India, and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls
operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls
over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness
of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements. whether due to fraud or
elTor.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over
financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company’; (2)
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company:
and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use,
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.
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Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility
of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur
and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting
to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Holding Company, which is company incorporated in India, have, maintained in all material
respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls
over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2022, based on the internal control over
financial reporting criteria established by the Holding Company considering the essential components of internal
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

Ot Megaynl

per Nikhil Aggatwal
Partner
Membership Number: 504274

UDIN: 22504274 AWWWML8232

Place of Signature: Gurugram
Date: September 29, 2022



Awfis Space Solutions Private Limited

Consolidated balance sheet as at Mareh 31, 2022

CIN No, UT4999DL2OT4PTC274236

(All amounts in Rs. lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars

ASSETS
Non-current assets
{a} Propery, plant and equipment
(b} Cupital work-im-progress
(¢} Other intangible assers
(d} Righr-of-use assets
e} Finmneial assets
(1) [Investments
(i) Other linancial assets
(f) Mon-current tax assets (net)
{g) Uther non-current assets
Total Non-current assets

Current assels
{a) Inventories
(b} Financial asscts
() Investments
(i} Trade receivables
(it} Cash snd cash equivalents
{ivl Bank Balance other than above
(v} Other financial assets
) Oiher current assets
Tuotal Current assets

Total assets

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity

(a) Equily sharc capital

(b} (hher equity
Total equity

Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
{a) Financial Liabilities
(1 Borrowing
Lease habilities
(1) Other linancial liabilities
{b) Provisions
(¢} Other nen-current liabilities
Total Non-current liabilities

Current liahilities
(#) Financial Lisbilitics
(i) Borrowing
(i) Lease liabilitics
(i) Trade payables

- total owtstanding dues of micro enterprises and small

enterprises:

- tatal curstanding dues of creditors other than micro

enterprises and small cnterprises:
{iv}) Other financial liabilives
(b} Provisions
() Other current liabilities
Total current liahilities

Tatal equity and labilities

The accompanying notes form an intergral part of these

As per our report of even date atiached

For 5.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Aceountants

LCAL firm registration no.: 101049W/E300004

.
®oxuid
per Nikhil Aggarwal

Partner
Membership no. 504274

Place: Gurugram
Date: Seplember 29, 2022

Notes

5(a)
5(by
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15
16

17
EH]
19
18
21

17
33
0

19
1R
2l

i financial

As at As at As at
Mareh 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 April 01, 2020

12.068.46 9.640.73 T.A85.75
8917 13.24 125.73
241 54.85 47.80
21.865.08 20.289.87 23,069,856
5.851.59 4,873.27 3.586,28
1,285.642 613.99 2.521.55
1.670.08 284,63 128 41
43,694.41 35,770.60 3706538
3357 2047 1542
1.639.40 4,213.63 6,391.90
3.776.15 1.538.66 39138
5M0.72 96854 66666
382.48 3.221.03 309.47
1.567.05 B13.60 2.108.75
4,324.93 431146 1.476.37
12.274.30 15,087.39 11,559.95
55.968.71 50.857.99 48,625.33
301341 301341 30134
643871 12006185 843198
9.472.12 15,075.26 11,44539
TT9.49 29.45 29627
26.858.00 24.608.04 23.978.68
6.539.88 4.092.33 462422
155.70 10757 7500
132181 H67.06 SEE08
35.654.88 29.304.45 29.491.25
42983 267.22 1.017.97
1.736.70 1.371.82 JAaanT2
42.24 2139 21.39
4.469,37 275511 130280
197738 7167 £90.05
318.23 213.80 134.07
184794 1.077.27 1.280.69
1084171 6.478.28 7.687.69
55.968.71 50.857.99 48.625.33

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
of Awlis Space Solutions Private Limited

Place: New Delhi

Date: September 29, 2022

Plage: New Delhi

Date: September 29, 102 245
e

/ \/\f \/V

Jitesh Bhugra
Chiel Financial Officer

i

Bhagwan Kewal Ramani
Director
DN 02988910

Place: New Delhi
Dale: September 29,

mit Kumar
Compan® Sceretary
Membership no. A31237



Awfis Space Solutions Private Limited

Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2022

CIN No. U74999DL2014PTC274236
(All amounts in Rs. lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars

I Revenue from operations
Il Other income

I Total income (I +1I)

IV Expenses

(a)

{b) Purchases of stock-in-trade
(c)} Changes in inventories of traded goods
{d) Employee benefits expense

(e)

(f) Depreciation and amortisation expense

(g)

Vi
VII

VI

Sub-contracting cost

Finance costs
Other expenses
Total expenses (IV)

Loss before tax (II1-1V)
Income Tax expense

Loss for the year (V - VI)

Other comprehensive income

[tems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
(a) Remeasurements of the defined benefit plans
(b) Income tax relating to these items

Total other comprehensive loss

Total comprehensive loss for the year (VII + VIII)

Earnings per equity share
(1) Basic (in Rs)
(2) Diluted (in Rs)

Notes Year ended Year ended
’ March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

22 25,704.53 17,835.98
23 2,166.97 3,765.92
27,871.50 21,601.90
4,186.94 963,52
24 43418 139.07
25 (33.10) (5.05)
26 541540 3,183.68
27 4.871.87 4,655,50
28 9,843.29 8,683 .54
29 8.868.51 §,245.90
33,587.09 25,866.16
(5,715.59) (4,264.26)

39 - -
(5,715.59) (4,264.26)
35 (21.15) (5.87)

39 = =
(21.15) (5.87)
(5,736.74) (4,270.13)
30 (18.97) (14.15)
30 (10.52) (8.29)

The accompanying notes form an intergral part of these consolidated financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants

ICAI firm registration no.: 101049W/E300004

Kl f a.,juw( Ao

per Nikhil Ag,

Partner

Membership no. 504274

Place: Gurugram
Data: September 29, 2022

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
of Awfis Space Solutions Private Limited

Nl

w
Amit i
Dinectol
DIN: 00549918

Place: New Delhi
Date: September 29, 2022

L
/ N\
8
Jitesh Bhugra
Chief Financial Officer

Place: New Delhi
Date: September 29, 2022

Bhagwan Kewal Ramani
Director
DIN: 02988910

Place: New Delhi
Date: September,29, X122

Compapy Seeretary
Membeyship no. A31237

Place/ New Delhi
afe: September 29, 2022




Awfis Space Solutions Private Limited
Consolidated statement of cash flow for the vear ended March 31, 2022
CIN No. UT4999DL2014PTC274236

(Al amounts in Rs. lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars
A Cash flow from operating activities

Net loss for the year

Adinstnients for:

Depreciation and amortisation

Employee stock compensation expense

Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Crain on Far valuation of mutual funds

Assets written off

Interest income on fixed deposit

Interest income on fair valoation of security deposits
Interest mcome on Loan to employee

Gain on sale of mutual funds

Exeess provision written back

Interest paid en term loan

Interest paid on lease liability

Interest paid on fair valuation of security deposit
COVID-19 related rent concessions

Profiton termination of lease

Provision for doubtful security deposits

Provision for doubtful debts

Operating profit before working capital changes

Movements in working capital:
{Increasc)decrease in trade reccivables
Increase in inventories

Increase in other financial assets
Increase in other assels

Increase in trade payables
Increase in Provisions

Inerease in Other financial liabilit
Increase/(decrease) in Other liabilitics

Cash generated from operations

Net income tax (paid) / refunds

Net cash flow from operating activities (A)

B. Cash flow from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment including movement in creditors for capital good and capital

advance

Purchase of Intangible assels

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and cquipment
Interest income on fair value of security deposit
Interest income on loan to employee

In in fixed deposits with bank

Redemption of fixed deposits with bank

Investments in subsidiary

Redemption of mutual funds

Purchase of mutual fund

Interest received

Net cash flowi{used in) from investing activities (B)

C. Cash Mow from financing activities

Procecds from issue of preference shares including securitics premium
Payment of principal portion of lease liability

Interest paid on lease liability

Interest paid on term loan

Interest paid on fair value of scourity deposit

Equity Comp of compulsory convertible Deb s and preference shares
Repuyment of long-term borrowings

Proceeds from long-term borrowing

Net cash flow used in financing activities (C)

Year ended
March 31, 2022

Year ended
March 31, 2021

(5.715.59) (4,264.26)
9,843.29 8,683.54
111.66 38.00
- (295.21)
(72.89) (213.25)
40.43 1,081.07
(61,16) (165.92)
(482.34) (190.70)
(8.06) (2.57)
(85.52) (103.50)
(3.77) (1,090.81)
83,10 149.91
427171 4,030.74
483.67 438,64
(957.19) {1.041.65)
(27.70)
2250 33.69
3.2 :
747935 7,087.72
(2.264.94) (947.29)
(33.10) (5.05)
(2.662.17) {275.79)
(341.66) (3.014.17)
173511 1,512.05
15141 106.43
2,871.70 676.02
162541 (254.44)
8,561.12 4,885.48
(671.63) 1.907.56
7.889.49 6,793.04
(6.443.03) (4.712.04)
- (24.73)
- 20521
48234 190,70
8.06 257
(1.871.50) (7.000.00)
5,135.88 4.203.61
2,732.65 3.744.96
- (1,249.95)
117.85 -
162.25 (4,549.67)
- 46.26
(4.579.68) (4,332.55)
(4.277.71) (4,030.74)
(83.10) 16.01
(483.67) {438.64)
- 7.815.76
(365.40) (1,017.57)
1.300.00 :
(8,489.56) (1,941.47)
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Particulars

Net cash flow {used in)/ from Cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)

Cash and cash equivalents al the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Cash and Cash equivalents comprise:
{a) Balances with banks in current accounts
{a) Cash in hand

The accompanying notes form an intergral part of these lidated financial st

Notes:
1} The above Cash Flow S
Flows®

has been prey

2) Changes in liabilitics arising from financing activitics:

Particulars

Year ended
March 31, 2022

Year ended
March 31, 2021

{437.82) 30159
968,54 666.66
530.72 964.55
53036 H6E. I8

0.36 0.36

530.72 968,55

{ under the *Indirect Method' #s set out in the Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS 7) *Statement of Cash

Asat MNon Cash Equity component Cash flows Asat
March 31, 2021 Interest expenses March 31, 2022
Borrowings 296.67 4.15 {21.94) 930,46 1,209.34
For lease liabilities, refer note 38
Particulars As at Non Cash Equity component Cash flows As at
April 01, 2020 Interest expenses March 31, 2021
Borrowings 1,314.24 272 (1,020.29) 296,67

For lease Habilities, refer note 38

As per our report of even date attached

For 5.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAL firm registration no.: 101049W/E300004

(I
per Nikhil Aggarwal

Partner
Membership no. 504274

Place: Gurugram
Date: September 29, 2022

Place: New Delhi

Date: September 29, 2022
}U""/

VW

A
W
Jitesh Bhugra
Chief Financial Officer

Place: New Delhi
Date: September 29, 2022

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
of Awfis Space Solutions Private Limited

W% =

agwan Kewal Ramani

Director

DIN: 02988910

Place: New Delhi

Drate: Scp?ﬂ,f[

Membgrship no. A31237

Plate: New Delhi
ate: September 29, 2022
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A. Eaquity share capital

Particulars Notes
Balance at April 01, 2020 15
Changes in equity share capital during the year

Balance at March 31, 2021

Changes in exquity share capital during the year

Balance at March 31, 2022

B. Other equity

Particulars Notes

Balance as at April 01, 2020 16
Issued during the year

Loss for the year

On issue of share at premium during the year

Options expense recognised during the year

Other comprehensive income for the year (OC])

Balance as at March 31, 2021

Issued during the year

Loss for the year

Options expense recognised during the year
Other comprehensive income for the year (OCH)
Balance as at March 31, 2022

The accompanying notes form an intergral part of these

Vi smoun
30,134,112 301341
30,134,1 ;z 3,013,4‘1
30,1341 1.2 3‘013,4_1

Equity

Equity component

of compulsory compnn‘cnt :f Eq““}r‘ - Retained Securilivs S'::::r:::fd Total
r:fr;:::;:":::ure convertible unsecured loan CARES premalin: re;ervrs
P debenture
13,866.29 T,091.81 - (24, 182 48) 11,29523 361.13 5431.98
T2.48 774328 - - - - 7815.76
- - - (4,264.26) - - (4,264.26)
* . s - 46.26 - 46.26
- - = - 3800 38.00
- - - (5.87) - - (5.87)
13,938.77 14.835.09 - (28,452.61) 11,341.48 399.13 12,061.85
- - 21.94 - - - 21.94
- - (5,715.59) - - (5,715.59)
& £ = - - 111,66 111.66
- - 121.15) - - {21.15)
13,938.97 14.835.09 2194 (34.189.35) 11.341.48 510.79 6.A58.71

d financial

As per our report of even date attached

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
1CAL firm registration no.: 101049W/E300004

®rka
per Nikhil Aggarwa

Partner
Membership no. 504274

agr-

Place: Gurugram
Date: September 29, 2022

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
of Awfis Space Solutions Private Limited

Place: New Delhi
Date: September 29, 2022

/{/‘ éﬁ:\’r\:\‘w

Jitesh Bhugra
Chief Financial Officer

Place: New Delhi
Diste; September 29, 2022

Bhagwan Kewal Ramani
Director
DIN: 02988910

Place: Mew Delhi
Date: September 29, 2038
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Company Overview

Awfis Space Solutions Private Limited (the '‘Company') was incorporated on December 17, 2014 with its
registered office in New Delhi. The Company along with its wholly owned subsidiary (Awliv Living Solutions
Private Limited) (collectively referred to as “the Group”), is primarily engaged in the business of providing
workspace on rent, integrated facility management income (facility management services) and enterprise
workspace designing and building services (construction and fit-out projects).

2. Basis of preparation

These consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting standards (Ind
AS) as notified notified by Ministry of corporate affairs under section 133 of the Companies act, 2013 (“Act”)
read with companies (Indian Accounting standard) Rules, 2015 as amended by companies (Indian Accounting
standard) (Amendment) Rules, 2016, the relevant provisions of the Act.

These consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 are the Company’s first Ind AS
consolidated financial statements. For all periods up to and including the year ended March 31, 2021, the
Company prepared its consolidated financial statements in accordance with accounting standards notified
under the section 133 of the Companies Act 2013, read together with paragraph 7 of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014 (Indian GAAP). An explanation of how the transition to Ind AS has effected the previously
reported financial position, financial performance of the Company is pro»\fided in note no. 41.

Basis of Consolidation: The Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared on the following basis:-

(i) The consolidation financial statements of the Group and its subsidiary company have been prepared in
accordance with the Ind AS 110 “Consolidated financial statements”, on a line-by-line basis by adding together
the book values of like items of assets, liabilities, income, and expenses, after eliminating intra-group balances
and intra-group transactions resulting in unrealized profits or losses. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have
been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the group (including
consideration to materiality impact, if any).

Subsidiary is entity over which the group has control. The group controls an entity when the group is exposed
to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power to direct the relevant activities of the entity. Subsidiary is fully consolidated from
the date on which control is transferred to the group. It is deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

(ii) The difference of the cost of investment in subsidiary over its share in the equity of the investee company
as at the date of acquisition of stake is recognized in financial statements as Goodwill or Capital Reserve, as
the case may be.

(iii) The Consolidated Financial Statements are presented, to the extent possible, in the same format as adopted
by the Holding Company for its individual financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis and under the historical cost
convention, except for the following assets and liabilities which have been measured at fair value:

- Investment in mutual funds measured at fair value [refer accounting policy 2.1(Q) regarding financial
instruments],

- Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value
- Share based payments
- Defined benefit plans as per actuarial valuation

Going Concern

The board of directors have considered the financial position of the Company at March 31, 2022, the projected
cash flows and financial performance of the Company for at least twelve months from the date of approval of
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sustained profitability remains on course. The board of directors have taken actions to ensure that appropriate
long-term cash resources are in place at the date of signing the accounts to fund the Company's operations.

Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amount of assets,
liabilities, income, expenses and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of these financial
statements and the reported amount of revenues and expenses for the years presented. Actual results may differ
from the estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed at each balance sheet date. Revisions
to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and future periods
affected.

Use of estimates and judgements

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting
date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Company based its assumptions and
estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and
assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising
that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.
Also, the company has made certain judgements in applying accounting policies which have an effect on
amounts recognized in the financial statements.

(i) Contingencies:

Contingent Liabilities may arise from the ordinary course of business in relation to claims against the
Company, including legal and other claims. By virtue of their nature, contingencies will be resolved only when
one or more uncertain future events occur or fail to occur. The assessment of the existence, and potential
quantum, of contingencies inherently involves the exercise of significant judgements and the use of estimates
regarding the outcome of future events.

(ii) Defined benefit plans:

The present value of the gratuity and compensated absences are determined using actuarial valuations. An
actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the
future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to
the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly
sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determ ining the appropriate discount rate for
plans operated in India, the actuary considers the interest rates of government bonds in currencies consistent
with the currencies of the post-employment benefit obligation. The mortality rate is based on publicly available
mortality tables for the specific countries.

Those mortality tables tend to change only at interval in response to demographic changes. Future salary
increases and gratuity increases are based on ex pected future inflation rates for the respective countries.

(iii) Useful lives of property, plant and equipment:

The Company reviews the useful life of property, plant and equipment at the end of each reporting period.
This reassessment may result in change in depreciation expense in future periods.

(iv) Lease:

Where the Company is the lessee, key judgements include assessing whether arrangements contain a lease and
determining the lease term. To assess whether a contract contains a lease requires judgement about whether it
depends on a specified asset, whether the Company obtains substantially all the economic benefits from the
use of that asset and whether the Company has a right to direct the use.c asset. In order to determine the




Awfis Space Solutions Private Limited

Accounting policies for consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
CIN No. U74999DL2014PTC274236

(All amounts in Rs lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

lease term judgement is required as extension and termination options have to be assessed along with all facts
and circumstances that may create an economic incentive to exercise an extension option, or not exercise a
termination option. The Company revises the lease term if there is a change in the non-cancellable period of a
lease. Estimates include calculating the discount rate which is generally based on the incremental borrowing
rate specific to the lease being evaluated or for a portfolio of leases with similar characteristics.

Where the Company is the lessor, the treatment of leasing transactions is mainly determined by whether the
lease is considered to be an operating or finance lease. In making this assessment, management looks at the
substance of the lease, as well as the legal form, and makes a judgement about whether substantially all of the
risks and rewards of ownership are transferred. Arrangements which do not take the legal form of a lease but
that nevertheless convey the right to use an asset are also covered by such assessments.

2.1 Summary of significant accounting policies
A. Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company
and the revenue can be reliably measured.

Revenue from contracts with customers:

- Revenue is recognized on the basis of approved contracts regarding the transfer of goods or services to a
customer for an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange
for those goods and services.

- Revenue is measured at the fair value of consideration received or receivable taking into account the amount
of discounts, incentives, volume rebates, outgoing taxes on sales, Any amounts receivable from the customer
are recognised as revenue after the control over the goods sold are transferred to the customer which is
generally on dispatch of goods.

- Variable consideration - This includes incentives, volume rebates, discounts etc. It is estimated at contract
inception considering the terms of various schemes with customers and constrained until it is highly probable
that a significant revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when the
associated uncertainty with the variable consideration is subsequently resolved. It is reassessed at the end of
each reporting period.

Satisfaction of performance obligations:

An entity shall recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a performance obligation by transferring a
promised good or service (ie an asset) to a customer. An asset is transferred when (or as) the customer obtains
control of that asset. For each performance obligation identified, an entity shall determine at contract inception
whether it satisfies the performance obligation over time or satisfies the performance obligation at a point in
time. If an entity does not satisfy a performance obligation over time, the performance obligation is satisfied
at a point in time,

For performance obligations that an entity satisfies over time, an entity shall disclose both of the following:

(a) the methods used to recognise revenue (for example, a description of the output methods or input methods
used and how those methods are applied); and

(b) an explanation of why the methods used provide a faithful depiction of the transfer of goods or services.
For performance obligations satisfied at a point in time, an entity shall disclose the significant judgements
made in evaluating when a customer obtains control of promised goods or services.

Integrated facility management income ('Facility management services')

Revenue from facility management services is recognized monthly, on accrual basis, in accordance with the
terms of the respective agreement a
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Enterprise workspace designing and building services ('Construction and fit-out projects')

The Company uses cost based input method for measuring progress for work completed. Under this method,
the Company recognizes revenue in proportion to the actual project cost incurred as against the total estimated
project cost. The management reviews and revises its measure of progress periodically and are considered as
change in estimates and accordingly, the effect of such changes in estimates is recognised prospectively in the
period in which such changes are determined. However, when the total project cost is estimated to exceed total
revenues from the project, the loss is recognized immediately.

Remote working and work from home solutions

Revenue from sale of furniture and work from home solutions is recognized when all the significant control
of ownership of the goods have been passed to the buyer, usually on delivery of the goods.

Sale of food items

Revenue from sale of food items (goods) is recognised on transfer of control of ownership of goods to the
buyer and when no significant uncertainty exists regarding the amount of consideration that will be derived.

B. Borrowing costs

C

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs incurred in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing
costs directly attributable to acquisition or construction of an asset which necessarily take a substantial period
of time to get ready for their intended use are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs
are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

Current versus non-current classification
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification.
Assets:

An asset is treated as current when it is:

i) Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

ii) Held primarily for the purpose of trading

iii) Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

iv) Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least

twelve months after the reporting period.
All other assets are classified as non-current,
Liabilities:
A liability is current when:

(i) It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

(ii) It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

(iii) It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

(iv) There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after
the reporting period.

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

Operating Cycle
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All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s operating cycle
and other criteria set out in the Schedule 111 to the Companies Act, 2013, Based on the nature of services and
the time between the rendering of service and their realization in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has
ascertained its operating cycle as twelve months for the purpose of current and non-current classification of
assets and liabilities,

D. Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the
presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

- In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
- In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability
The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant
that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the consolidated financial statements
are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level | — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable

Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the consolidated financial statements on a recurring basis, the
Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing
categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at
the end of each reporting period.

"The Company determines the policies and procedures for both recurring fair value measurement, such as
derivative instruments and unquoted financial assets measured at fair value. External valuers are involved for
valuation of significant assets and liabilities. The management selects external valuer on various criteria such
as market knowledge, reputation, independence and whether professional standards are maintained by valuer.
The management decides, after discussions with the Company’s external valuers, which valuation techniques
and inputs to use for each case.

At each reporting date, the management analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilities which
are required to be remeasured or re-assessed as per the Company’s accounting policies. For this analysis, the
management verifies the major inputs applied in the latest valuation by agreeing the information in the
valuation computation to contracts and other relevant documents.

The management, in conjunction with the Company’s external valuers, also compares the change in the fair
value of each asset and liability with relevant external sources to determine whether the change is reasonable.

Audit Committee and the Company’s independent auditors. This includes a discussion of the major
assumptions used in the valuations.
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For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the
basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as
explained above.

This note summarises accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are given in the
relevant notes.

- Property, plant and equipment (note 2.1 E)
- Disclosures for valuation methods, significant estimates and assumptions (note 2)
- Financial instruments (including those carried at amortised cost) (note 36)
- Comparison of carrying value and fair value of financial instruments (note 36)
- Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy (note 36)
E. Property, plant and equipment ("PPE')

The Company has measured Property, Plant and equipment at carrying value as recognised in the consolidated
financial statements as on transition date i.e. April 1, 2020 which has become its deemed cost.

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses, if any. Capital work in progress are stated at cost net of impairment loss, if any. Such cost includes the
cost of replacing part of the plant and equipment and borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if
the recognition criteria are met. When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at
intervals, the Company depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives. Likewise, when a
major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a
replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in
statement of profit or loss as incurred.

Depreciation on PPE are provided to the extent of depreciable amount on straight line basis (SLM).
Depreciation is provided at the rates and in the manner prescribed in Schedule IT to the Companies Act, 2013.
The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed
at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Leasehold improvements are amortised on a straight-line basis over the lower of lease term or useful life of
the respective assets restricted to 10 years.

Gains or losses arising from de recognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the statement of profit or loss
when the asset is derecognised.

F. Intangible assets

The Company has measured intangible assets at carrying value as recognised in the consolidated financial
statements as on transition date i.e. April 1, 2020 which has become its deemed cost.

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial
recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment
losses, if any.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the
amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end of each
reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future
economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modify the amortisation period or method, as
appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible
assets with finite lives is recognised in the statement of profit and loss unless such expenditure forms part of
carrying value of another asset.
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Gains or losses arising from de recognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the statement of profit or
loss when the asset is derecognised.

G. Impairment of non-financial assets

=

The Company assesses at each year end whether there is any objective evidence that a non financial asset or a
company of non financial assets is impaired. If any such indication exists, the Company estimates the asset's
recoverable amount and the amount of impairment loss.

An impairment loss is calculated as the difference between an asset’s carrying amount and recoverable amount.
Losses are recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss and reflected in an allowance account, When the
Company considers that there are no realistic prospects of recovery of the asset, the relevant amounts are
written off. If the amount of impairment loss subsequently decreases and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognized, then the previously recognized
impairment loss is reversed through Statement of Profit and Loss.

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit (as defined below) is the greater of its value in use
and its fair value less costs to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. For the purpose of impairment testing, assets are companies together
into the smallest company of assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely
independent of the cash inflows of other assets or Company's of assets (the “cash-generating unit”).

Investment in subsidiaries

There is an option to measure investments in subsidiaries at cost in accordance with Ind AS 27 at either:
(a) Fair value on date of transition; or

(b) Previous GAAP carrying values

The company has decided to use the previous GAAP carrying values to value its investments in its subsidiaries
as on the date of transition, April 01, 2020.

I. Foreign Currency Transactions

(i) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the consolidated financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates (‘the functional currency’). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in Indian rupee (Rs), which is the Company’s functional and presentation currency.

(ii) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into functional currency using the exchange rates at the dates of
the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from
the translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the year end exchange
rates are generally recognised in profit or loss.

Foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the statement of profit and loss on a net basis.

J. Inventories

K.

Stock of food items and furniture and other work from home solutions are valued at lower of cost and net
realisable value and cost is determined on first-in-first out (‘FIFO") basis.

The cost is determined by considering the purchase price and direct material costs. Net realisable value is the

estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less estimated cost of completion to make the sale.

Employee benefits
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(i) Defined Contribution Plan

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The Company has no
obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund. The Company recognizes contribution
payable to the provident fund scheme as an expenditure, when an employee renders the related service. If the
contribution payable to the scheme for service received before the consolidated balance sheet date exceeds the
contribution already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme is recognized as a liability after deducting the
contribution already paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for services received
before the consolidated balance sheet date, then excess is recognized as an asset to the extent that the
prepayment will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payment or a cash refund.

(ii) Defined Benefit Plan

The Company’s net obligation in respect of gratuity is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit
that employees have earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods. That benefit is
discounted to determine its present value, and the fair value of any plan assets is deducted. The present value
of the obligation under such defined benefit plan is determined based on actuarial valuation by an independent
actuary using the Projected Unit Credit Method, which recognizes each period of service as giving rise to
additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and measures each unit separately to build up the final
obligation. The obligation is measured at the present value of the estimated future cash flows. The discount
rates used for determining the present value of the obligation under defined benefit plan are based on the
market yields on Government securities as at the consolidated balance sheet date.

(iii) Compensated absences

Accumulated leaves which is expected to be utilized within the next 12 months is treated as short-term
employee benefit. The Company measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional amount that is
expects to pay as aresult of unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date. The Company treats
accumulated leave expected to be carried forward beyond 12 months, as long-term employee benefits for
measurement purpose. Such long-term compensated absences are provided for based on the actuarial valuation
using the projected unit-credit method at the year-end. The related re-measurements are recognized in the
statement of profit and loss in the period in which they arise. The Company presents the entire amount as
current liability in consolidated balance sheet since it does not have an unconditional right to defer its
settlement for 12 months after the reporting date.

(iv) Share based payment reserve

Employees of the Company receives remuneration in the form of share-based payments, whereby employees
render services as consideration for equity instruments. The cost of equity-settled transactions is determined
by the fair value at the date when the grant is made using Black Scholes valuation model. The grant date fair
value of options granted to employees is recognised as employee expense with a corresponding increase in
employee stock options reserve, over the period in which the eligibility conditions are fulfilled and the
employees unconditionally become entitled to the awards. The cumulative expense recognised for equity-
settled transactions at each reporting date until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting period
has expired and the company’s best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The
statement of profit and loss expense or credit for a period represents the movement in cumulative expense
recognised as at the beginning and end of that period and is recognised in employee benefits expense. The
dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share dilution in the computation of diluted
earnings per share.

L. Income taxes

The income tax expense comprises of current and deferred income tax. Income tax is recognised in the
statement of profit and loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in the other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case the related income tax is also recognised accordingly

a. Current tax
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The current tax is calculated on the basis of the tax rates, laws and regulations, which have been enacted or
substantively enacted as at the reporting date. The payment made in excess/(shortfall) of the Company’s
income tax obligation for the period are recognised in the consolidated balance sheet as current income tax
assets/liabilities. Any interest, related to accrued liabilities for potential tax assessments are not included in
Income tax charge or (credit), but are rather recognised within finance costs.

Current income tax assets and liabilities are off-set against each other and the resultant net amount is presented
in the consolidated balance sheet, if and only when, (a) the Company currently has a legally enforceable right
to set-off the current income tax assets and liabilities, and (b) when it relates to income tax levied by the same
taxation authority and where there is an intention to settle the current income tax balances on net basis.

b. Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying values in the restated consolidated summary statement.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The unrecognised deferred tax assets/carrying amount of deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting
date for recoverability and adjusted appropriately. The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-
assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable
profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the
asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Minimum alternate tax (MAT) paid in a year is charged to the statement of profit and loss as current tax. The
Deferred tax asset (DTA) is recognised for MAT Credit available only as an asset only to the extent that there
is convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax during the specified period, i.e., the
period for which MAT credit is allowed to be carried forward. In the year in which the Company recognizes
MAT credit as an asset in accordance with the Guidance Note on Accounting for Credit Available in respect
of Minimum Alternative Tax under the Income-tax Act, 1961, the said asset is created by way of credit to the
statement of profit and loss and shown as "MAT Credit Entitlement". The Company reviews the "MAT credit
entitlement"” asset at each reporting date and writes down the asset to the extent the Company does not have
convincing evidence that it will pay normal tax during the specified period.

Leases

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Where the Company is the lessee

The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term
leases and leases of low-value assets. The Company recognizes lease liabilities to make lease payments and
right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

A. Right-of-use assets

The company recognizes right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the
underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-

of-use assefs includes the amount of lease liabilities recognized, initial direct costs incurred, and lease
payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets
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If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the company at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the
exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset.

The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment (Refer to the accounting policies mentioned in point (G)
impairment of non-financial asset.

B. Lease Liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognizes lease liabilities measured at the present value
of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including in
substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an
index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also
include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Company and
payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Company exercising the option
to terminate. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognized as expenses
(unless they are incurred to produce inventories) in the period in which the event or condition that triggers the
payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the
lease commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the
commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced
for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a
modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments (e.g., changes to future payments
resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine such lease payments) or a change in the
assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

C. Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases of machinery and
equipment (i.e., those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do
not contain a purchase option). It also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to leases of
office equipment that are considered to be low value. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-
value assets are recognized as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Where the Company is the lessor

Leases in which the Company transfers substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the asset are
classified as finance leases. Assets given under finance lease are recognized as a receivable at an amount equal
to the net investment in the lease. After initial recognition, the Company apportions lease rentals between the
principal repayment and interest income so as to achieve a constant periodic rate of return on the net investment
outstanding in respect of the finance lease. The interest income is recognized in the statement of profit and
loss.

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the
asset are classified as operating leases. Assets subject to operating leases are included in property, plant and
equipment. Management recognised lease income on an operating lease is recognized in the statement of profit
and loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term on reasonable basis. Costs, including depreciation, are
recognized as an expense in the statement of profit and loss. Contingent rents are recognized as revenue in the
period in which they are earned.

Sale and leaseback transactions

Any excess of sale proceeds over the carrying amount in case a sale and leaseback transaction results in a
finance lease, is deferred and amortised over the expected period of use of leased asset in proportion to the
depreciation of the leased asset.

D. Ind AS 116: COVID-19 related rent concessions
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MCA issued an amendment to Ind AS 116 Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond 30 June 2021 to
update the condition for lessees to apply the relief to a reduction in lease payments originally due on or
before 30 June 2022 from 30 June 2021. The amendment applies to annual reporting periods beginning on or
after 1 April 2021. In case a lessee has not yet approved the financial statements for issue before the issuance
of this amendment, then the same may be applied for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 April
2020.

p

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity
shareholders (after deducting preference dividends and attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of
equity shares outstanding during the period. Partly paid equity shares are treated as a fraction of an equity
share to the extent that they are entitled to participate in dividends relative to a fully paid equity share during
the reporting period. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period is adjusted
for events such as bonus issue, bonus element in a rights issue, share split, and reverse share split (consolidation
of shares) that have changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding change in
resources.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to
equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for
the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

=

Provisions and contingent liabilities
Provision

A provision is recognized when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past event, it is probable
that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are not discounted to their present
value and are determined based on the best estimate required to settle the obligation at the reporting date.
These estimates are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

Contingent Liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Company
or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a
liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. The Company does not recognize
a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the consolidated financial statements.

P. Cash and cash equivalents

The Company considers all highly liquid financial instruments, which are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash that are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value and having original maturities of
three months or less from the date of purchase, to be cash equivalents.

Q. Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any confract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability
or equity instrument of another entity.

(a) Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

At initial recognition, financial asset is measured at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at
fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable-ta the acquisition of the financial
%

)
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asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in profit or
loss.

Subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in following categories:

a) at amortized cost; or
b) at fair value through other comprehensive income; or
c) at fair value through profit or loss.

The classification depends on the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual
terms of the cash flows.

Amortized cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest are measured at amortized cost. Interest income from these financial
assets is included in finance income using the effective interest rate method (EIR).

Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI): Assets that are held for collection of contractual
cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent solely payments of
principal and interest, are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI). Movements
in the carrying amount are taken through OCI, except for the recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest
revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses which are recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss. When
the financial asset is derecognized, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in OCI is reclassified
from equity to Statement of Profit and Loss and recognized in other gains/ (losses). Interest income from these
financial assets is included in other income using the effective interest rate method.

Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL): Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortized cost or FVTOCI
are measured at fair value through profit or loss. Interest income from these financial assets is included in
other income.

Equity instruments: All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity
instruments which are held for trading and contingent consideration recognized by an acquirer in a business
combination to which Ind AS103 applies are classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, the
Company may make an irrevocable election to present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in
the fair value. The Company makes such election on an instrument- by-instrument basis. The classification is
made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.

If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the
instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCL There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI to
P&L, even on sale of investment. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within

equity.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized
in the profit and loss.

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, Financial Instruments, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model
for measurement and recognition of impairment loss on financial assets that are measured at amortized cost
and FVTOCI.

For recognition of impairment loss on financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines that whether
there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased
significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased
significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If in subsequent years, credit quality of the instrument improves such that

there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to
recognizing impairment loss allowance based on 12 months ECL.




Awfis Space Solutions Private Limited

Accounting policies for consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
CIN No. U74999DL2014PTC274236

(All amounts in Rs lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Lifetime ECLs are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life
of a financial instrument. The 12 months ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from default
events that are possible within 12 months after the year end.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the
contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e. all shortfalls), discounted at the original
EIR. When estimating the cash flows, an entity is required to consider all contractual terms of the financial
instrument (including prepayment, extension etc.) over the expected life of the financial instrument. However,
in rare cases when the expected life of the financial instrument cannot be estimated reliably, then the entity is
required to use the remaining contractual term of the financial instrument.

In general, it is presumed that credit risk has significantly increased since initial recognition if the payment is
more than 30 days past due.

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the year is recognized as income/expense in
the statement of profit and loss. In consolidated balance sheet ECL for financial assets measured at amortized
cost is presented as an allowance, i.e. as an integral part of the measurement of those assets in the consolidated
balance sheet. The allowance reduces the net carrying amount. Until the asset meets write off criteria, the
Company does not reduce impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount.

A financial asset is derecognized only when

a) the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset is transferred or
b) retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but assumes a contractual
obligation to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients.

(b) Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss and at amortized cost, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the case of borrowings and payables, net of
directly attributable transaction costs.

Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial
liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortized cost
using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss when the liabilities are
derecognized as well as through the EIR amortization process. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into
account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR
amortization is included as finance costs in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or
expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially

. different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
[=}
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difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss as finance
costs.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account the outstanding amount and the
applicable rate.

R. Segment reporting

The Company has the policy of reporting the segments in a manner consistent with the internal reporting
provided to the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM). The chief operating decision maker is considered
to be the Board of Directors who makes strategic decisions and is responsible for allocating resources and
assessing performance of the operating segments.

S. Recent Accounting Pronouncement

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA™) notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards under
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. On March 23, 2022, MCA
amended the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2022, which are as below. The
effective date for adoption of this amendment are from annual periods beginning on or after April 01, 2022:

Ind AS 16 — Property Plant and equipment

The amendment clarifies that excess of net sale proceeds of items produced over the cost of testing, if any,
shall not be recognised in the profit or loss but deducted from the directly attributable costs considered as part
of cost of an item of property, plant, and equipment. The Company is currently assessing the impact of the
amendments to determine the impact they will have on the Company’s accounting policy disclosures.

Ind AS 37 — Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

The amendment specifies that the ‘cost of fulfilling’ a contract comprises the ‘costs that relate directly to the
contract’. Costs that relate directly to a contract can either be incremental costs of fulfilling that contract
(examples would be direct labour, materials) or an allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling
contracts (an example would be the allocation of the depreciation charge for an item of property, plant and
equipment used in fulfilling the contract). The Company is currently assessing the impact of the amendments
to determine the impact they will have on the Company’s accounting policy disclosures.

T. New Accounting Pronouncements effective from April 1, 2021:

Revaluation of office properties in India (property, plant and equipment)

The Company re-assessed its accounting for property, plant and equipment with respect to measurement of a
certain class of property, plant and equipment after initial recognition. The Company had previously measured all
property, plant and equipment using the cost model whereby, after initial recognition of the asset classified as
property, plant and equipment, the asset was carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses.

On | April 2021, the Company elected to change the method of accounting for office properties in India classified
as property, plant and equipment, as the Company believes that the revaluation model provides more relevant
information to the users of its financial statements as it is more aligned to practices adopted by its competitors. In
addition, available valuation techniques provide reliable estimates of the office properties’ fair value. The
Company applied the revaluation model prospectively.

After initial recognition, office properties in India are measured at fair value at the date of the revaluation less any
subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses. For details refer to Note 3.

Newad amended standards

The Company applied for the first-time certain standards and amendments, which are effective for annual periods
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beginning on or after 1 Apr 2021. The Company has not early adopted any other standard or amendment that has
been issued but is not yet effective:

(i) Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2: Amendments to Ind AS 109, Ind AS 107, Ind AS 104
and Ind AS 116

The amendments provide temporary reliefs which address the financial reporting effects when an interbank

offered rate (IBOR) is replaced with an alternative nearly risk-free interest rate (RFR).

The amendments include the following practical expedients:

- A practical expedient to require contractual changes, or changes to cash flows that are directly required by
the reform, to be treated as changes to a floating interest rate, equivalent to a movement in a market rate of
interest

- Permit changes required by IBOR reform to be made to hedge designations and hedge documentation without
the hedging relationship being discontinued

Provide temporary relief to entities from having to meet the separately identifiable requirement when an RFR
instrument is designated as a hedge of a risk component

These amendments had no impact on the financial statements of the Company. The Company intends to use the
practical expedients in future periods if they become applicable.

(i)  Conceptual framework for financial reporting under Ind AS issued by ICAI

The Framework is not a Standard and it does not override any specific standard. Therefore, this does not form part
of a set of standards pronounced by the standard-setters. While, the Framework is primarily meant for the standard-
setter for formulating the standards, it has relevance to the preparers in certain situations such as to develop
consistent accounting policies for areas that are not covered by a standard or where there is choice of accounting
policy, and to assist all parties to understand and interpret the Standards.

The amendments made in following standards due to Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting under Ind
AS .includes amendment of the footnote to the definition of an equity instrument in Ind AS 102- Share Based
Payments, footnote to be added for definition of liability i.e. definition of liability is not revised on account of
revision of definition in conceptual framework in case of Ind AS 37 - Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets etc,

The MCA has notified the Amendments to Ind AS consequential to Conceptual Framework under Ind AS vide
notification dated June 18, 2021, applicable for annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2021. Accordingly,
the Conceptual Framework is applicable for preparers for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 April 2021.

These amendments had no impact on the financial statements of the Company.
(iiiy  Ind AS 103: Business combination

The amendment states that to qualify for recognition as part of applying the acquisition method, the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed must meet the definitions of assets and liabilities in the Framework for the
Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards* issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India at the acquisition date. Therefore, the acquirer does not recognise
those costs as part of applying the acquisition method. Instead, the acquirer recognises those costs in its post-

combination financial statements in accordance with other Ind AS.

These amendments had no impact on the financial statements of the Company.
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(iv)  Amendment to Ind AS 105, Ind AS 16 and Ind AS 28

The definition of “Recoverable amount™ is amended such that the words “the higher of an asset’s fair value less
costs to sell and its value in use” are replaced with “higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and its
value in use”. The consequential amendments are made in Ind AS 105, Ind AS 16 and Ind AS 28.

These amendments had no impact on the financial statements of the Company. The following Ind AS
pronouncements pursuant to issuance of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules
2021, were issued during the year:

- Amendment to Ind AS 103- Business Combinations
- Amendment to Ind AS 104- Insurance Contracts
- Amendment to Ind AS 116- Leases

None of the changes described above, or any of the other changes to the Ind AS, have a impact on the net
worth, financial position, financial performance or on the cash flow of the Company.
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5(a) Property. plant and equipment and capital work-in-progress

Particulars Leasehold Comy 5 Vehicles Office equipment  Furniture & Tatal Capital work in
improvements Fixtures progress
Gross cost
Balance at April 01, 2020 5,372.69 41.21 8.16 1,114.93 1,048.76 7,585.75 125.73
Additions 1.886.77 48.23 - 715.05 1,370L.03 4,021.08 -
DHsposals - - - - - - -
Transfer to block - - - - - - 112.49
Balance at March 31, 2021 7,259.46 89.44 8.16 1,829.98 2419.79 11,606.83 13.24
Additions 2,548.42 5598 - 1.326.31 1,170.98 5.101.69 869.17
Disposals / write off - - - - - - (13.24)
Balance at March 31, 2022 9,807,588 145,42 8.16 3.156.29 3.590.77 16.708.52 $69.17

Depreciation and impairment
Balance at April 01, 2020 (refer note 2.1 E) - - - 5 = = 5

Charge for the year 1.394.83 24.30 1.57 351.64 193.74 1,966,08 -
Disposals = = o & = x =
Balance at March 31, 2021 1.394.83 24.30 1.57 351.64 193.74 1,966.08 -
Charge for the year 1,792.85 33.93 1.57 532.87 312.78 2,673.98 -
Disposals - - - - - - -
Balance at March 31, 2022 3.187.68 58.23 3.14 884.51 506.50 4,640.06

Net book value

As at March 31, 2022 6,620.20 87.19 5.02 227178 3,084.27 12,068.46 869.17
As at March 31, 2021 5,864.63 65.14 6.59 1,478.34 2,226.05 9,640.75 13.24
As at April 01, 2020 5372.6% 41.21 8.16 1,114.93 1.048.76 71,585.75 125.73

5(b)  Capital work in progress (CWIP} Ageing Schedule

As at March 31, 2022 Amount in CWIP for a period of
Particulars Less than I year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 Total
years
Project in progress 869.17 - - - 869.17
Project temporarily suspended = o] iy " o
869.17 - = = 869,17
As at March 31, 2021 Amount in CWIP for a period of
Particulars Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 Taotal
years
Project in progress - 0.96 - 12.29 13.25
Projeet temporarily suspended F: 3 = 2 5
- 0.96 - 12.29 13.25
As at April 01, 2020 Amount in CWIP for a period of
Particulars Less than 1 year -2 years 2-3 years More than 3 Total
years
Project in progress L1 - 333 12,29 125.73
Project temporarily suspended E S # = &
110.11 - 3.33 12,29 125.73
5(c) Right-of-use Assets
Particulars 1 bl Leaschold Computers  Office equif t Furniture and Total
property imgmvemems fixtures
Gross cost
Balance at April 01, 2020 21,104.34 1,339.72 6.36 304.94 31450 23,069.86
Additions 5,087 86 - - - - 5,087.86
Maodification { termimation (121.21) (1,339.72) (6.36) (304.94) (314.50) (2,086.73)
Balance at March 31, 2021 26,070.99 - - - - 26,070.99
Additions 8.781.53 - - - - 8,781.53
Muadification / eermination (54.24) - - - - (54.24)
Balance at March 31, 2022 34,798.28 - - - - 34,798.28
Depreciation
Balance at April 01, 2020 (refer note 2.1 E) - - - - - -
Charge for the year 5.781.12 628.49 2.68 139.55 147.92 6,699 77
Disposals - (628,491 (2.68) {139.55) (147.92) (918.65)
Balance at March 31, 2021 5,781.12 - - - - 5,781.12
Charge for the year TA52.09 - - - = 715209

Disposals

12,933.21 - - - - 12,933.21
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Net book value

As at March 31, 2022 21,865.07 - - - - 21,865.07
As at March 31, 2021 20,289.87 - - - - 20,289.87
As at April 01, 2020 21.104.34 1.339.72 6.36 304.94 314.50 23.069.86
[ Intangihble assets
Computer Total
software
Gross Cost
Balance at April 01, 2020 47.80 47.80
Additions 2473 24.73
Disposals - -
Balance at March 31, 2021 72,53 72.53
Additions 46.78 46.78
Disposals - -
Balance at March 31, 2022 119.31 119.31
Amortisation and impairment
Balance at April 01, 2020 (refer note 2,1 E) - -
Charge for the year 17.68 17.68
Disposals - -
Balance at March 31, 2021 17.68 17.68
Charge for the year 17.22 17.22
Disposals = -
Balanee at March 31, 2022 34.90 34.90
Net book value
As at March 31, 2022 84.41 84.41
As at March 31, 2021 54.85 54.85
As at April 01, 2020 47.80 47.80

(Thix space has heen left blank intentionally)
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Al amounts in Rs. lakhs, uniess otherwise stated )

Investments

Particolars

Investments in mutual funds (queted, carried at fair value through profit or loss)*®

Nil (March 31, 2021: 30,098, April 01, 2020: 1,392) units in Axis Liquid
Dhrcet-Growlh

Nil (March 31, 2021: Nil. April 01.2020: 2,091.919) units in Axis Short Term
Direet-Growth

1,376,000 (March 31, 2021: 1,376,000, April 01, 2020: 1,376.000) units in
DSPBR Ulma Shon Term Direct-Growth

Wil {March 31, 2021 Nil, April 01, 2020:18,964) umits in DSP Liguidity Fund-
Dircet Plan-CGrowth

Nil (March 31, 2021: 2031817, April 01, 2020 2,043 339) units in HDFC
Floating Rate Income 8T Wholesale Dircet-Growih

Nil (March 31, 20212 Nil, April 01, 2020: 3,195.841) units in HDFC Short
Term Opportunities Direct-Growih

Nil (March 31, 2021: Nil, April (1. 2020; 789) units in Reliance Low Duration
Fund Direet Growth

Wil (March 31, 2021; Nil, April 01, 2020 64) units in Axis Liquid Direct-G
(PMS)

Wil (March 31, 2021; Nil, April 01, 2020 10,071,751) units in HDFC Ulwa
Short Term Fund Direct-G

Nil (March 31, 2021: Nil. April 011, 2020: 2,896} units in Nippon India ETF
Liquid Bees

1,807.561 (March 31, 2021: 2,575,260, April 01, 2020: 2,879.611) unils in
IDFC Bond Short Term: Direct-G

1,153,634 (March 31, 2021; 3,043,512, April 01, 2020; 2,595.562) units in
Kotak Bond Short Term Direct-G

Total Investments Carrving Value

Aggregate book value of quoted investments
Apgregate market value of quoted investments

*nvestments amounting 1o Rs. 569.20 (March 31, 2021: Rs. 103.81; April 01, 2020: Rs 2470.55) are lien marked.

Trade receivables

Particulars

Unsecured, considered good

- Billed*

- Unbilled

Trade receivables which have significant incrzase in credit risk
Trade receivables- credit impaired

Less: Impairment Allowance (allowance for had and doubiful debts)
Unsecured, considered gond

Trade reccivables which have significant increase in credit risk

Trade reeeivables- credit impaired

Total

Notes:

1,639 .40
Non-current Current
As ar As at As at As al As at As at
Mareh 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 April 01, 2020 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 April 01, 2020
= - GET.T0 2129.06
- = - - 4RE.99
= = - 22649 217.74 205.09
i 3 - - 53872
- - - - TR 72298
= = = = - 73147
- - = - - 2218
= - - - - 0.67
- = - - - 1,133.93
= - - - - 2896
= < - RE5.71 1.206.85 1,244.68
= . - 521.20 1.323.34 1.041.17
= = = 1,639.40 4.213.63 6,391.90
E - - 1.639.40 4,213.63 6,391,940
= = - 1,639.40 4,213.63 6,391.90
Current
As at As at Asat

March 31,2022 March 31, 2021 April 01, 2020

3.040.92 1,395.54 38144

73523 14312 9.94

8285 il.e4 31.64

3.859.00 1.590.30 643,02
(82.85) (51.64) {31.64)

3 TM 1.538.66 591.38

*This includes Nil (March 31, 2021 Rs. 67.40; April 01, 2020: Rs. 40.67) receivable from Companies in which dircclors of the Company are able Lo exercise control or have significant influcnce. No trade
or other receivable are due from directors or other officers ol the Company either severally or jointly with any other person,

(i} Nermally the Company collects all receivables from its customers within the applicable credit period. The Company nmpai

cireumsunces relaed to each transaction,

on trade e sl

from all the customers on facts and

(i) On account of adoption of lnd AS 109, the Company uses a simplified approach (Jifelime expected credit loss model) for the purpose of computation of expected credit loss for trade receivables,

(iv) Trade receivables ageing schedule

As at March 31, 2022
Ouststanding for following periods from due date of payment

Particulars Unbilled amount < 6 months 6 months - 1 year 1-2 vears 2-3 years >3 years Total
Undisputed Trade receivables- considered zood 735.23 1,883.37 119.81 3173 - - 3,776.15
Undisputed Trade reccivables- which have significant - - 3492 27.00 15.07 387 8L.R6
imerease in credit risk
Undisputed Trade receivables- credit impuired - - - e - -
Dispuled Trade receivables- considered good - - - - - .
Disputed Trade receivables- which have significant increase - - - - & -
in eredin risk
Diisputed Trade reccivables- credit impaired - - - - - - -

735.23 1,883.37 154 73 ﬁj.?j 15.07 587 3 R-‘N.ll'
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for the vear ended March 31, 2022

As at March 31, 2021
Quststanding for following periods from due date of payment
Particulars Unbilled amount < 6 months 6 months - 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 vears =3 years Total
Undisputed Trade receivables- considered good 143.12 1,354.98 8R4 1.72 - - 1,538.66
Undisputed Trade receivables- which have significant = 853 15.65 2033 713 - 51.64
increase in credit risk
Undisputed Trade reccivables- eredit impaired - - - - = - =
Disputed Trade receivables- considered sood - = - 3 = - -
Disputed Trade receivables- which have significant increase - - - - - - -
in gredit risk
Disputed Trade receivables- credit impaired - - - - - - -
143,12 1.363.5] 54.49 2205 7.13 - 1,590,30_
As at April 01, 2020
Quststanding for following periods from due date of pavment
Particulars Unbilled amount < 6 months 6 months - 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 vears =3 yeurs Total
Undisputed Trade receivabl idered goud 9.94 572.12 032 - - - 591.3%
Undisputed Trade receivables- which have significant - 3722 116 T.20 .05 - 51.63
inerease in credit risk
Undisputed Trade receivables- eredit impaired - - - - - -
Disputed Trade receivables- considered good - - = = = = i
Disputed Trade receivables- which have significant increase - - - - - - -
in credit risk
Disputed Trade receivables- credit impaired - = - - = i
9,04 609,34 16,48 7.20 0,05 643,01
Maovement in Unbilled revenue
Year ended Year ended As on April 01,
March 31, 2022 Murch 31, 2021 2020
Balance at the begning of the year 143.12 9.94 0.4
Less: [nvoice raised during the year (143,12} {9.94) 10,14y
Add; Unbilled revenue during the vear 73523 14312 9.94
Balance at the closing of the year 735.23 14312 9.94
9 Other financial assets
{Unsecured and considered good unless otherwise stated) Non-current Current
Particulars Asat As at As at As at Asat Asat
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 April 01, 2020 March 31,2022 March 31,2021  April 01, 2020
Seeurity deposit
- Considered good 5,766,421 439744 304528 149689 636,35 203535
- Considered doubnful 36.19 33.09 - - - -
Loan to emplayces - 50.00 - SH.00 95.09 -
Bank deposit of more than 12 months * - 42583 341.00 - - -
Interest scerued on loan o emplovee - - - 315 907 -
Interest acerued on fixed deposit - - 1422 0,91 4417
Balances in payment galeways - - - 279 ENE] 29,23
Revenue equalisation reserve 8517 - - - - =
Other recoverabled = - . - - -
5.907.78 4,906.96 3.586.28 1.567.05 #1360 1,108.75
Less: Provision for doubiful d {56.19) {33.69) - - -
Total 585159 4.873.27 3.586,28 L567.05 813.60 2,108.75
*Deposits (including note 14} amount to Rs. 5.00 (March 31, 2021: Rs, 237,94; April 01, 2020: Rs. 822.16) are licn marked.
#includes related parties amounts to Rs. 1.70 (March 31, 2021; Rs. 1.70; April 01, 2020: Ry, 1,70},
10 Non-current tax assets (net)
As at As al As at
March 31,2022 March 31, 2021 April 01, 2020
Tax Deducted at source recoverable 1285.62 613.99 2.521.55
Total L,285.62 613.99 2.521,55
11 Other assets
(Unsceured, Considered good. unless otherwise stated) Non-current Current
Particolars Asat As at As at Asat As at Asat
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 April 01, 2020 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 April 01, 2020
Capital advances 118276 125.50 102.65 - - =
Prepaid expenscs GR7.32 159.13 2576 713.59 613,58 617.66
Advance to employee - - - #1035 3293 50.21
Advance 10 vendors - - - 602.07 61058 365.19
Balance with govemment authurities - - - 252224 306437 44331
Tuotal LATILIE PLEN X 128.41 4, \H 43 431146 1.476,37
12 Inventories
(vadued at lower of cost and net realisable valie)
Particulars As at As at As at
March 31,2022 March 31,2021 April 01, 2020
Stock-in-Trade 3337 20.47 1542
Total 3137 2047 o
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13 Cash and cash equivalents

Particulars As at As at As at
March 31,2022 March 31, 2021 April 01, 2020

Balance with banks

= In current accounts 53036 AR 660,50
Cash in hand 0.36 0.36 6.16
Total 530.72 968,54 G666

14 Bank Balance ather than above

Particulars As at As at As at
March 31,2022 March 31,2021 April 01. 2020

Deposits with onginal maturity of more than 3 months but less than 12 months* 3R248 3rI103 30947

Total 382.48 3.221.03 309.47

*Deposits (including note 9) smounting to Rs. 5.00 ( March 31, 2021: Rs. 237.94; April 01, 2020: Rs. #22.16) are lien marked.

(Thix space has been Jofe blank inrenrionally)
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15 Share capital
. As at As at As at

Kok dhick ol March 31,2022 March 31,2021 April 01, 2020
37,822,434 Equity Shares (March 31, 2021: 37,822 434 | April 01, 2020: 37,822,434} ol Rs, 10 cach 3.782.24 3,782.24 1.782.24
14,155 475 Preference Shares (March 31, 2021: 14155475 ; April 01, 2020: 14,081.719) of Rs. 100 cach 14,155.48 14.155.4% 14,0%1,72

17.937.72 17,937.72 17.863.96

Equity Shares
. As at Asat As at
Issued share capital, subseribed and fully paid March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 Anril 01. 2020
- - —— " A 4
,»I)I,E_A_] 12 Equity Shares (March 31, 2021: 30,134,112 ; April 01, 2020; 30,134,112} of Rs. 10 each fully 3.013.41 101341 3.013.41
paid up
3,013.41 SAI_HSAI 3,013.41
Notes:
(a) Reconciliation of shares fing at the beginning and at the end of reporting period
1} Equity share of Rs, 10 cach issued, subscribed and fully paid
_ Number  Amount

As at April 01, 2020 30,134,112 3.013.41
Issued during the year 3 .
As at March 31, 2021 30,134,112 3.013.41
Changes during the year ’ - -
As at March 31, 2022 30,134,112 3,013.41

11} Equity component of 0.0001%, compulsory convertible cumulative preference share of Rs. 100 each issued, subscribed and fully paid

U

i3

)

__Number  Amount _
As at April 01, 2020 14,059,246 13,866.29
Issued during the year 73.756 7248
As at March 31, 2021 14,133,002 13,938.77
Issued during the year = £
As at March 31, 2022 14,133,002 13.938.77
Rights, Preferences and Restrictions attached to shares:
Equity shares
The Company has only one class of cquity sharcs having a par value of Rs, 10 per share, Fach holder of equity shares is entitled to one vole per share. In the event of
liguidation of the Company, holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company after settl of all the preferential liabilities. The

distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the sharcholders.

Compulsorily convertible preference shares

"The Company has only one class of 0,0001% fully and compulsorily convertible cumulative preference shares (CCPS) having a par value of Rs. 100 per share fully paid up.
Each holder of CCPS is entitled to one vote per share held and are eligible to receive cumulative dividend at the rate of 0.0001% on the faec value of the share. CCPS shall be
converted to equity shares on or betore the expiry of 20 years from the date of issnance of the CCPS or filing of the prospectus by the Company in connection with an Initial
Public Offer, whichever is earlier.

Compulsorily convertible debentures

Fach CCI shall bear a coupon rate of 0.001%. Each CCD shall be converted into cquity shares at any time at the option of the holder. Each CCD shall automatically convert
into equity shares, at the conversion price in effect, upon the earlier of one day before expiry of 10 years from the date of issuance of such CCD or in case of oceurence of
initial public offer (IPO).

Details of sharcholders holding more than 5% of the shares in the Company

As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021 As at April 01, 2020
Number Yo of holding Number % of holding Number % of holding
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each:
Amit Ramani 11,799,885 39.16% 11,799,885 39.16% 11,799,885 39.16%
DOIT Urban Ventures (India) Private
Limited (formerly known as DOIT 5354424 17.77% 5354424 17.77% 5354424 17.77%
Enterprises India Private Limited)
SCI Investments V 2,438,324 8.09% 2438324 8.09% 2,438,324 8.0u%%
RARB Enterprises {India) Private Limited 9,737 468 3231% 0,737.468 32.31% 9,737,468 32.31%
29,330.101 97.33% 29,330,101 97.33% 29,330,101 97.33%
As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021 As at April 01, 2020
Number % of holding Number % of holding Number Yo of holding
0.0001%  Compulserily  convertible
cumulative preference shares of Rs 100
cach:
SC1 Investments V 11,232,948 T9.48% 11,232,048 79,48% 11,232.948 T9.90%
DOLT Urban Venures (India} Private
Limited {formerly known as DOIT 1,784,797 12.63% 1,784,707 12.63% 1,784,797 12.69%

Enterprises India Private Limited)

13,017,745 92.11% 13.017.745 92.11% 13,017,745 92.59%




Awfis Space Solutions Private Limited

Naotes to ¢ lidated fi ial st for the year ended March 31, 2022
CIN No. UT4999DL2014PTC274236
(All in B, lakhs, unless otherwise stared)

{0y Shares reserved for issue under options

For detail of shares reserved for issue under Employee Share Hased payments (ESOPs) of the company [refer Note-37).

(e} Details of shares held by promoters

As at March 31, 2022

No. of shares at

No. of shares at

o T A o i
Promoter Name the beginning of Changedncing the end of the 74 o0100| #a Chigige
the year shares during the year
the year N year
Amit Ramani 11,799,845 - 11,799,885 39, 16% -
Total 11,799,885 - 11,799.885 39.16% 5
As at March 31, 2021
he. nf%hnres at Change during Mo, of shatesay %o of total % change
Promoter Name the beginning of the end of the
the vear shares during the year
the year ’ year ¥
Amit Ramani 11,799,885 - 11,799,885 39.16% -
Total 11,799,885 = 11,799.885 39.16% -
As at April 01, 2020
No. of shares at Change during No. of shares at % of total o% change
Prometer Name the beginning of the end of the i
the year shares during the year
the year * year
Amit Ramani 11,799 885 - 11,799,885 39.16% -
Total 11,799,885 - 11,799.885 3.16% =

(N No shares have been issued pursuant to contract without payment being received in cash, allotted as fully paid up shares by way of honus issues nor has any shares been

bought back since the incorporation of the C

16 Other equity

Particulars

Securitics premiom reserve

Balance as at the beginning of the year
Add: On issue of shares during the year
Balance at the end of the year

Share based payment reserve
Balance as at the beginning of the year

Add: Options expense recognised during the year

Less: Options exercised during the vear
Balance a5 at the end of the year

Equity component of convertible debenture
Balance as at the beginning of the year
Issued during the year

Balance at the end of the year

Equity component of preference share
Balance as at the beginning of the year
Issued during the year

Balance at the end of the year

Equity component of unsecured loan
Balance as at the beginning of the year

Issued during the year

Balance at the end of the year

Retained earnings

Balance as at the beginning of the vear
Add: Loss for the year

Balance as at the end of the year

Other Comprehensive Income
Balance as at the beginning of the year
Add:- Loss for the year

Ralance as at the end of the year

Total

As at March As at March As at April 01,
31,2022 31, 2021 2020
LL341.48 11,295.23 9,164.25
0.01) 46.26 2,130.98
11.341.47 11.341.48 11,295.23
399,13 LIRS 390.71
111,66 38,00 (29.58)
510.79 396.13 361,13
14,835,009 T,091.81 709181
£ T.74328 -
14,835.09 14,835.09 7,001.81
13,938.77 13,866.29 13.866.29
- 7248 -
13,938.77 1393877 13.866.29
21.94 - -
21.94 - x
(28,446.74) (24,182.48) (18.600.32)
{5.715.59) {4,264.26) (5,582.16)
(34.162.33) (28,446.74) (24,182.48)
(5.87) - &
(21.15) {5.87) =
(27.02) (5.87) -
6.458.71 12.061.86 8:431.98
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Mature and Purpose of Other Reserves :

Retained Earnings

Retained camings are the profits that the Company has camed nill date, less any transfers to general reserve, dividends or other distributions paid to sharcholders. Retained
earmings is a free reserve available to the Company,

Securities premium reserve
Securilics premium is used to record the premium on issue of shares. The reserve can be utilised only for limited purposes such as issuanee of bonus shares in accordance with
the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013,

Share based payment reserve

The Group has “Awfis Space Solutions Stock Option Plan (EDSOP 2015 share option schemes under which options w subseribe for the Group's shares have been granted to
eligible employees.

The employee's stock options reserve is used 1o recognise the value of equily-settled sharc-bascd payments p
part of their remuneration. Refier to Note 37 for further details of these plans.

-

| to employees, including key management personnel, a5

Compulsorily eonvertible preference shares

‘The Company has only onc class of 0.0001% fully and compulsorily convertible cumulative preference sharcs (CCPS) having a par value of Rs. 100 per sharc fully paid up.
Each bolder of CCPS is entitled to one vote per share held and are eligible to receive cumulative dividend ot the rste of 0,0001% on the face value of the share. CCPS shall be
converted 1o equity shares on or before the expiry of 20 years from the date of issuance of the CCPS or filing of the prospectus by the Company in ¢ ion with an Initial
Public Offcr, whichever is carlier.

Compulsorily convertible debentures
(.001% Compulsorily convertible debentures (CCD) has been issued 10 Bisque Limited at lace value of Rs 10,000 per CCD. Each CCD shall bear a coupon rate of 0.001%.
Each CCD shall be converted into equity shares at any time at the option of the holder. Esch CCD shall amtomatically convert into equity sharcs, at the conversion price in
effect. upon the carlier of one day before expiry of 10 years from the dute of issuance of such CCD or in case of occurence of initial public offer (IPO).

(This space fas been left hlank intentionally)
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17

Borrawing
8 -
Non-current Current
Particulars As at As at As at As at Asat As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 April 01, 2020 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 April 01, 2020
Secured
Term loan from other partics - 29.45 29627 - - -
Current maturity on long term bormawings - - - 2645 26,82 1017.57
Total {a) - 29.45 196.27 29.45 166.82 1,017.57
Unseeured
Term loan from other parties 779.49 - = - - =
Current maturity on long term borrowings - - - A00.00 - -
Loan from directord - - - 040 .40 .40
Total (b) 779.49 = - A00.40 0.40 0.40
Total (a+b) 779,49 2945 296.27 42985 267.21 1.017.97

* For interest rate and Lguidity risk related disclosures, refer note 36,
i [nterest free loan from director is repayable on demand

Term loan from other parties:

Secured

a) Rs. 700 carries an interest rate of 14.60% and is repayable in 31 equal thly instak & ing from Scptember 1, 2019 and the last instalment due was on March |, 2022, Duc
{e moratorium period the same was extended upto April 30, 2022, This loan is secured by an exclusive and first charge by way of a lien over the lixed deposits.. The smount outstanding as
at March 31, 2022 is s, 29.45 (March 31, 2021 is Rs. 296.27; April 01, 2020: Rs. 513.84).

b} Rs. 3000 carries an interest rate of 14% and is repayable in 30 equal hly instalm ing trom July 1, 201% with the last instalment due on December 1, 2020. This loan was
seeured by an exclusive and first charge by way of hypothecation of all existing and future, fixed and current assets of the Company. The amount outstanding as at March 31, 2022 is Nil
(March 31, 20212 Nil; Aprit 01, 2020- Rs. 800 ).

Linsecured

a) Rs. 300 carries an interest rate of 12% and is repayable as bullet payment on maturity. The ameunt outstanding as at March 31, 2022 is Rs. 289.90 (March 31, 2021 is Nil; Apnil 01,
2020: Nilh.

I} Rs. 1000 carries an interest rate of 12% and is rep in 30 equal hly instal i« ing from January 01, 2022 with the Jast instalment due on June 01.2024. The amount
outstanding as at March 31, 2022 is Rs. 889.59 (March 31, 2021 s Nil; Aprl 01, 2020: Nil),

Provisions
Particulars Non-current Current
Asat As at As at Asat As at Asat
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 April 01, 2020 March 31. 2022 Murch 31, 2021 April 01, 2020
Provision for emplovee benefits
Provision for compensaled absences - - - 29642 19384 12716
Provision for gratwity (Refer Nole 35) 135.70 107.57 75,00 41 81 19.96 691
Total 155.70 107.57 75.00 338.23 213,80 134.07
Other financial liabilitics
Nun-current Current
As at Asat As at As at Asut As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 April 01, 2020 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 April 01, 2020
Fair value of security deposits reccived from 6,539,858 400233 462422 3389 85,42 045
Creditors for capital goods*# - - - 114597 486,91 339.39
Retention money - - - 198.65 112.32 127.82
Interest aceried but not due - - - 20.28 - &
Employee related lisbility - - - 578.59 184.02 239
Total 6,539.88 4,092.33 4.624.22 1,977 3% #7167 490.05

*Creditors for capital goods are normally non- interest bearing and are normally settled within 90 days from the due date,
#Creditors for capital goods includes amount payable to MSME vendors amounts to Rs. 308,17

(This spuce has been left blank fntentioneliv
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21

Trade payables

Ag at Asat Asat
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 April 01, 2020
= Ouistanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 42.24 21.39 21.39
- Cutstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises* 446937 2,755.11 1,302.80
Total 4,511.61 2.776.50 1.324.19

Tincludes made payables to related parties amounts to Rs, 501,39 (Mareh 31, 2021: Rs. 251.46; April 01, 2020: Rs. 327.03),

(a) Trade Payable ageing schedule

As at Mareh 31, 2022 Outstanding for follewing periods from due date of payment

. ; Unbilied Less than 1 vear 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Taotal
Total D!Jt&-lamlmg dues of micro enterprises and small i 2169 < n ] 20,69
enterprises ) )
Total n!nstandmg dues of crc_dlmrs other than micro 035 490036 . _ 268,76 4.469.37
cnlerprises anil small enterprises
Disputed dues of micra enterprises and small enterprises - - - - 21.35 21.55
Disputed dues of creditors other than micro entemprises
und small enterprises | A & i = 2
0.25 4,221.05 - = 29031 451161
Asat March 31, 2021 Qutstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Unbilled Less than I year 1-2 vears 2-3 vears More than 3 years Total
Total outstanding ducs of micro enterprises and small
entemrises ) - - - = i E
Total outstanding dues ofcn:ldllnrs other than micrn 0:30 274421 ) . (0:61 3755.12
enterprises and small enterprises
Disputed ducs of micro enterprises and small enterprises - - - - 2139 21.39
Disputed dues of creditors other than micro enterprises _
and small emterprises ) = ' iy i
0.30 1.744.21 - - 32.00 2.776.51
Asat April 01, 2020
Ouistanding for following periods from due date of payment
Unbilled Less than 1 vear 1-2 vears 2-3 vears More than 3 vears Total
Totul outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small
enterprises ) ) - - - i = )
Total DEIISIQI’IL'II‘IE dues I)fCﬂ.‘.lllhll'g other than micra _ 1.286.65 6.08 . 10.08 | 30281
enterprizes and small enlemrises
Disputed dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises - - - - 21.39 21.39
Disputed dues of creditors other than micro enterprises
and small enterprises 5 a - = = )
= 1,286.65 6.08 = 3147 1,324.20

{b) As per Schedule [ of the Companies Act, 2013 and as certificd by the management, the amount due to Micro and Small Enterprises as defined in Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
Development Act. 2006 is as under:

As ar Asat As at

Paciiculiny March 31, 2022 March 31,2021 April 01, 2020

(i} Principal amount und interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier covered under MSMED Act, 2006:

-Principal amount due lo micro and small enterprises (including capital creditors) 35041 21.39 2139
-Interest due on above 0.16 N

(1) The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of scction 16 of the MSMED Act 2006 along with the amounts of the

payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each BCCOUNTING year

(it} The amount of interest due and payable for the peried of delay in making payment fwhich have been paid but beyond
the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the MSMED Act 2006

(iv) The amount of interest scenued and remaining unpaid at the end of each secounting year 016 - -
() The amount of further interest remaining duc and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the
interest dues as above are actually paid 1o the small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure - - -

under section 23 ol the MSMED Act 2006

Bues to Micro and Small Enterprises have been determined to the extent such partics have been identified on the basis of info ion collected by the Manag This has been relied
upon by the auditors.

{c ) Trade payable are nonmally non- interest bearing and are normally setled within 45 days from due date,

Other liahilities

Non-current Current
Asat As at As at Asat As at As ot

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 April 01, 2020 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 April 01, 2020

Advance from customers - - - 650.03 BRI 246.59
Advance rent 132181 46706 SE8.08 628,85 34150 409.95
Deferred revenue - - - 253.96 195,16 419.51
Statutory ducs - - - 314,95 203,12 20457
Oihers - - - 0.15 .18 0.07
Taotal 'I‘SZI,B_I_ 467.06 S18.08 1.547.94 1.077.27 1,280.69

(Tl sprarce huas Bee foft Wank intentionally)




Awfis Space Solutions Private Limited

Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
CIN No. UT4999DL2014PTC274236

{All amounts in Rs. lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

22 Revenue from operations

Rental income
Income from construction and fit-out projects
Income from facility management services
Sale of traded goods:
Furniture and work from home solutions
Food items
Other services

Total

(a) Performance Obligation

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
18,438.69 15,293.31
4,873.02 1,148.59
963.14 401.99
234.56 86.96
244,14 62.79
950.98 842.34
25,704.53 17.835.98

During the year, the Company has not entered into long term contracts with customers and accordingly disclsoure of unsatisfied or remaining
performance obligation (which is affected by several factors like changes in scope of contracts, periodic revalidations, adjustment for revenue that

has not been materialized, tax laws etc.) is not applicable to the Company.

(b) Disaggregation of Revenue

In the following tables, revenue is disaggregated by product group and by geography. This is consistent with the revenue information that is
disclosed for each reportable segment under Ind AS 108 (refer Note 31). The Company believes that this disaggregation best depicts how the
nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of our revenues and cash flows are affected by industry, market and other economic factors.

Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Within India 7,265.84 2,542.68
Outside India = .
Total Revenue 7.265.84 2,542.68

(¢) Timing of Revenue Recognition

Revenue from sale of products and services (except Construction and fit-out projects) are transferred to the customers at 4 point in time, whereas

revenue from Construction and fit-out projects is transferred over a period of time.

(d) Reconciliation of revenue recognised with contract price

Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Contract price 7.265.84 2,542.68
Less: Liquidated damages payable to customers - -
Revenue from contracts with customers 7,265.84 2,542.68
(e) Trade receivables and Contract Balances
P Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Trade receivables 2,679.88 783.49
Contract assets 704.50 -
Contract liabilities 100.21

(This space has been left blank intentionally)
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CIN No. U74999DL2014PTC274236

(All amounts in Rs. lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

() Significant changes in contract liabilities

Particulars

Year ended
March 31, 2022

Year ended
March 31, 2021

Changes in balance of contract liabilities during the year:

Opening balance of contract liabilities 195.16 419.51
Amount of revenue recognised against opening contract liabilities (195.16) (419.51)
Addition in balance of contract liabilities for current year 253.96 195.16
Closing balance of contract liabilities 253.96 195.16

(g) Trade Receivables and Contract Balances
For Trade Receivables, refer Note No. 8.

Further, the Company has no contracts where the period between the transfer of the promised goods or services to the customer and payment

terms by the customer exceeds one year. In light of above;

- it does not adjust any of the transaction prices for the time value of money,

(h) There is no variable consideration included in the transaction price,

23 Other income
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Interest income
- On fixed deposits 61.16 165.92
- On income tax refund - 211.93
- On fair valuation of security deposits 482.34 190.70
- On loan to employee 8.06 257
Gain on sale of mutual funds 85.52 103.50
Provision written back 3.77 1.090.81
Liabilities no longer required written back 33.79 -
Gain on sale of property, plant and equipment (net) - 29521
Fair value gain on financial instruments measured at FVTPL (net) 72.89 21325
Rental income on fair value of security deposit 434.36 440.98
COVID-19 related rent concessions 957.19 1.041.63
Profit on termination of lease 27.70 -
Miscellaneous income - 9.40
Total 2,166.97 3,765.92
24 Purchases of stock-in-trade
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Food items 246.45 85.72
Furniture for sale 187.73 53.35
Total 434.18 139.07
25 Changes in inventories of stoek-in-trade
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Balance at the beginning of the year
Traded goods and components 20.47 1542
Less: Balance at the end of the year
Traded goods and components 53.57 2047
Total (33.10) (5.05)




Awfis Space Solutions Private Limited

Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
CIN No. U74999DL2014PTC274236

(All amounts in Rs. lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

26 Employee benefit expenses

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Salaries, wages & bonus 4.920.14 2,881.96
Contribution to provident and other funds 219.74 182,12
Gratuity expenses [Refer note 35] 51.97 45.08
Share based payments [Refer note 37] 111.66 38.00
Staff welfare expenses 111.89 36.52
Total 5,415.40 3,183.68
27 Finance costs
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Interest on term loan 83.10 14991
Interest on lease liabilities 4.277.71 4,030.74
Interest on security deposit 483.67 438.64
Other finance charges 27.39 36.21
Total 4,871.87 4,655.50
28 Depreciation and amortisation expense
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment [Refer Note 5(a)] 2,673.98 1,966.09
Depreciation of right-of-usc asscts [Refer Note 5(c)) 7.152.09 6,699.77
Amortisation of intangible assets [Refer Note 6] 17.22 17.68
Total 9,843.29 8,683.54
29 Other expenses
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Common area maintenance 1,444.72 1,132.99
Electricity expenses 1,728.93 1.265.15
Rent 2,008.76 1,756.56
Water charges 74.88 48.75
Security and housekeeping charges 316.27 489.32
Parking cxpenses 106.00 138.96
Communication expenses 566.39 520.14
Legal and professional expenses 486.27 392.23
Payment to auditors (refer note (i) below) 25.25 14.30
Brokerage expenses 4068.21 372.15
Business promotion expenses 208.33 9358
Advertisement and sales promotion 246.01 108.46
Repair and maintenance 274.29 254.49
Travelling and conveyance expenscs 325.01 147.88
Equipment hiring charges 100.30 66.42
Rates and taxes 102.36 7327
Insurance 53.10 39.95
Recruitment and training expenses 13.02 25.03
Printing and stationery expenses 59.55 34.64
Charity and donation 8.38 4.13
Provision for doubtful security deposits 22.50 33.69
Assets written off 4043 1,081.07
Provision for doubtful debts 31.21 B
Miscellancous cxpenses 158.34 152,74
Total 8.868.51 8.245.90
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Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
CIN No. U7T4999DL2014PTC274236

(All amounts in Rs. lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Notes:

(i)

30

Payment to auditors (excluding taxes):
As Auditor

For statutory audit 25.25 14.30
For tax audit = -
For other services - -

In other capacity
Reimbursement of expenses = -
Total 25.25 14.30

Earnings per share

Basic EPS amounts is calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders by the weighted average number of Equity shares
outstanding during the year. Diluted eamnings per share is computed using the weighted average number of common and dilutive common
equivalent shares outstanding during the year, except where the result would be anti-dilutive.

Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Profit/(Loss) attributable to equity holders (5,715.59) (4,264.26)
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year (Nos) 30,134,112 30,134,112
Weighted average number of potential equity shares outstanding during the year (Nos) 54,354,564 51,409,325
Basic earnings per share (Rs.) (18.97) (14.15)
Diluted eamings per share (Rs.) (10.52) (8.29)
10.00 10.00

Facc value per share (Rs.)

(This space has been lefi blank intentionally)
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34

Contingent liabilities and commitments

(i) Contingent labilities

The Company has reviewed all its pending claims, litigations and olher 1 dings and has adequately provided for wt required, The Company does nol expect the outcnme of these procesdings 1o have 1
material or sdverse effect on finsncial position of the Company. Contingent Fabilities of the Company is disclosed as below .

As at Asat As ut
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 April 01, 2020
Trcome tax demand inclding interest on demand® 2,260.59 2.269.59 2.114.00

* Income tax demand comprise demand from the Indian tax autherities for payment of additional tax of Rs. 2269.59 (March 31, 2021 Rs, 2,269.5%: April 01, 2020: Rs, 2,1 14.00) including interest on demand of
Nil (March 31, 2021 Rs. 155.5%; April 01, 2020: Nil). upon completion of their tux review for the financial year 2016-17, The tux demsind is mainly on account of sddition under seetion 68 of the Income Tax Act,
1961, The mattet is pending before the Commissioner of Income Tax (Appeals).

The Company is contesting the d is and the meluding its tax advisors, believe that its position will likely be upheld in the appellate process, No tax expensc has been acerued in the consalidated
fiancial statements for the tax demand raised. The management belioves that the ultimate outeame of this proceeding will not have a material adverse effect on the Company's financial position and results of
operations.

(i} Commitments
As at Asat As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 April 01, 2020

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be ¢xecuted on capital account and nat provided for (net of advances) 3,470.00 03231 367.61

Capital management

For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity share capital and all other equity reserves atiribulable o the equity holders of the Company. The primary objectives of the
Company's capital are Lo safeguarnd the Comp ability to inue a3 2 poing concern.

The eapital structure of the Company consists of total equity of the Company.

The Company’s management reviews the capital structure of the Company on a regular basis. As pan of this review, the management considers the cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of capital

qui and mai ol adequate liquidity. The Company is not subject to externally imposed capital requirements.
Asat Asat As at

The Company's adjusted net debt to cquity ratio was as follows: March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 April 01, 2020
Borrowings 1.200.34 29667 131424
Luss: Cash and cash equivalents 530.72 968.54 666,66
Less: Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 3R2A4R 322103 0047
Net debt 296.15 {3,892.00) 338.12
Equity share capital 3034 300340 3341
Other equity 6.458.71 12,061 85 B431.98
Total Capital 947212 15,075.26 11,445.39
Capital and ner debr 9.768.27 11,182.37 11,783.51
Gearing ratio 3.03% .00 %% 287%

(Thiz space has heen loft blank imentionafly)
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35 Employce benefits

{a) Defin nivil on plans
The Company makes Provident Fund contributions to defined bepefit plan for qualifying employees. Under the Schemes, the Company is required (o ibute o specilied | 1ge of the
payroll costs to fund the henefits, The contributions payable to Urese plans by the Company are al rates specified in the rules of the schemes,
Particulars Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Employers ibution to provident fund 179.71 14953
Employ ibution to cmpl state scheme 3390 2140
Others 413 10.79

Total 219.74 182.12

(hy  Defined benefit plans

The Company’s gratuity scheme provide for lump sum p 1o vested empl at reti . death while in employiment or on inativn of employ of an amount cquivalent o
15 days basic sulary for cach completed year of service or part therol in excess of six months in terms of provisions of Gawity Act, 1972, Vesting vecurs upon completion of five years of
service.

The present value of defined benefit obligation and the related current service cost were measured using the projected unit credit method with sctarial valuations being carried aut at each
standalone balance sheet date. The liability or asset recognised in the standalone balance sheet in respect of provident fund plan is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the
end of the reporting period less the fair value of plan assets.

The following table ises the of net benefit expense recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss and the gnised in the dalone bal: sheet:
n Amount d in S of Profit and Loss and other hensive income;
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Space Care Space Care

Current service cost RS 378 3549 -
Past service cost L - - &
Net interest expense 241 0.37 5.67 -
Interest expense (assen ceiling/onerous hability) = = - =
Amount recognised in Statement of profit and Joss * 47.66 4.15 41.16 -

Remeasurement of defined benefit linbility:

Actuarial (gainhloss from changes in demograhic assumptions - = - -
Actuarial (gainploss from chunges in financial assumptions 7.24 - 0.04 -
Actuarial (gainiless from experience adjustments 17.88 {3497 5.83 =
Amount ised in other prehensive (i Vexpense 15.11 (3.97) 5.87 -

(11} Reconcilistion of fir value plan assets ang defined benefit oblisuti

Asat As at Asat
March 31, 2022 Mareh 31, 2021 April 01, 2020
Space Care Space Care Space Care

Fair value of plan assets - - - - - -
Defined benefit obligation 192.28% 523 127.53 5 &1.91 -
Lifeet of asset ceiling/onerous liability - = - - = =
!\lcl defined asset [ (liability) recognised 192,28 513 127,53 = 81.91 -
in the standalone balance sheet
Classified as non-current 15054 517 107.57 - 75.00 -
Classified as current 41.75 .06 19.96 - 6.91 -

192.28 523 127.53 - §1.91 -

e o
(i} Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows:

Farticulars Asat Asat Asat

March 31, 2022 Mlareh 31, 2021 April 01, 2020

Space Care Space Care Space Care

Defined benefit obligation at beginning of the year 12753 - LI | = 90.74 22
Current service cost R85 378 3549 - 2559 -
Acquisition adjustment (5.05} 305 - - - -
Past service cust - - - - - -
Interest expense BRIl 0.37 5.67 - 695 -
Remeasurement { gains)losses 25101 (3.97) 547 - {41.37) -
Actuarial (gain)/Less from changes in financial assumptions - - -
Actuarial (gain)/Loss from expericnee adjustments - = ] = =
Actuarial (gain)/Losy from changes in demographic assumptions - - - g -
Benefits paid {2.9%) (1.41) = 2 2

Defined benefit obligation at end of the year 19228 5.13 127.53 - §1.91 -
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(iv) The principal ions used in determining obligations for the Company’s plan are shown below:
Particulars As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021 As at April 01, 2020
Space Care Space Care Space Care
Discount rate {in %) 726 7.26 691 - 6.92 -
Future salary increage {in %) 12 00 12.00% 10.00%, - 10008 -
Moartality rates inclusive of provision for disability 100% af IALM 100% ol IALM 1005 of LALM L00% of IALM
12002-14) (2002 - 14) (2012 - |4 = 12002 - 14) -
Retirement age (in years) 60 L] i) - ol -
Estimare of amount of contribution in the immediste next year 57.51 6,74 54.95 = 3507 -
Auntrition ot ages Withdrawal Rate  Withdrawal Rate  Withdrawal Rate  Withd, | Rate Wi Withd |
(%) (%) (%) (%) Rate (%) Rate (%)
Up 1o 30 Years 0% 5% 30 - 30% -
From 31 to 44 years 0% 1% 30% - 30% -
Above 44 years 30% 1% 30% - 300 -
The discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Government of India securities s at the standalone balance sheet date for the esti | tenm of obligs The estimate of
future salary increases considered. takes into account the inflation, seniority, promotion, increments and other relevant factors.
(v}
actuirial plions for the d ination of the defined obligation arc di rate, exf | salary increase and monality. The seasilivity analyses below have been
determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective assumptions oceurring at the end ol the reporting period, while holding all other assumptions constant
Particulars As af March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021 As at April 01, 2020
Chratuity jalan Space Care Space Care Space Care
Effect of +50 basis points in rate of disconnting (299 [LARR] (2,20} - {2.35) -
Effect of -30 basis points in rte of discounting 310 0l 227 - 24 -
Effcet of 50 basis points in rate of salary increase 248 0l 2.00 - 236 -
Effect of -30 basis points in rate of salary increase (2.44) [(LREH] (1.96) - (2.30) -
The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual ehange in the defined benefit obligation as it is unlikely that the change in sssumptions would oecur in
isolation of one snother as some of the assumptions may be correlated,
Furthermore, in presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the present value of the defined henefit obligation has been ealealuted using the projected unit credit method at the end of the
reporting period, which is the same as that gpplied in caleulating the delined benelit ehligation liability recopnised in the falone balance sheet
There was no change in the methads and plions used in preparing the itivity analysis from prior years.
(v} The expected muturity analysis of undiscounted gratuity is as follows:
Particulars As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021
Space Care Space Care
Year 1 714 0.06 1996 -
Year 2 4185 = 2758 -
Year 3 3032 - 20.79 -
Year 4 2175 .54 14.95 -
Year 5 1548 30 [ISY -
Year 6 179 013 770 -
Next 5 years 665 4.20 2545 -
Total expected payments 192.28 5.13 12753 -
(Vi) Risk exposure;

Through its defined benefit plans, the Company is exposed to a number of risks. the most significant of which are detailed below:

Interest Risk: The plan exposes the Company to the risk of fall in interest rates. A fall in interest rtes will result in an increase in the ulfimate cost of providing the above benefit and will
thus result in an increase in the value of the liability (a5 shown in standalone fiancial statements).

Linuidity Risk: This is the risk that the Company is nat able to meet the shor-term gratuity payouts, This may arise due to non availsbility of enough cash / cash equivalent to meet the
liabilities or holding of ifliguid assets not being sold in lime

Salary Escalation Risk: The present value of the defined benefit plan is caleulated with the assumption of salry increase st of plan participants in future. Devistion in the rate of increase
efsalary m future for plan participants from the rate of increase in salary used to determine the present value of vhligation will have a bearing on the plan's linbility.

Demographic Risk: The Company has used eertain fity snd storition ions in valuation of the lisbility. The Company 15 exposed to the nsk of actual experience tuming out to
be worse compared to the assumption,

Regulutory Risk: Gratuity benefit is paid in d with the requi of the Payment of Gratwity Act. 1972 {as amended from time 1o time). There is a risk of change in regulations

requiring higher gratuity payouts (£ Increase in the maximum limit on gratuity of Rs. 2,000,000,
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36 Financial instruments — Fair values and risk management

A. Fair value of financial assets and liabilities that are not measured at fair value (but fair value disclosures are required)
Set out below is a comparison by class of the carrying amounts and [air valtue of the Company's financial instruments, other than these with carrying amounts that are
reasonable approximations of fair values:

Carrying Values Fair Values

Asat  AsatMarch Asat April As at March 31, As at March 31, As at April
March 31, 31, 2021 01, 2020 2022 2021 01, 2020
2022
Fi ial assets ed at amortized cost
Security Deposits 7.319.50 306748 3,080.63 7.319.50 5,067.48  5,080.63
Loan to Employee (including interest accred) 52.15 154.17 - 53.15 154,17 -
Term depusit (including interest acerued) 14.22 496.74 383.17 14.22 496.74 385.17
Fi ial liabilities ed at amortized cost
Loan from Others 1,209.34 296.67 1,314.24 1.209.34 296.67 1,314.24
Lease labilities 28,594.70 2587986 2741940 28,594.70 25.879.86 27.419.40
Security deposit 6,573.77 4,180.75 4.644.67 6.573.77 4180075 464467

The management asscssed that cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, Loan to employee, trade receivables, Other receivables, Balance in payment
gateway. shott term borrowings, trade payables & retention money approximate their carrying amounts largely duc to the short-term maturitics of these instruments.

The fair values for employce advances were caleulated based on cash flows discounted using a current lending rate. They are classified as level 3 fair values in the
fair value hierarchy due to the inclusion of unobservable inputs including counterparty credit,

The fair values of non-current borrowings, deposits and retention money are bused on discounted cush flows using a current borrowing rate. They are classified as
level 3 fair values in the fair value hierarchy due to the use of unobservable inputs, including own credit risk.

B. Fair value hicrarchy

The Company uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments by valuation technique:-

Measurement of Fair Value P

Level 1: Level | hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices. This includes listed equity instruments, traded bonds and mutual funds that
have quoted price. The fair value of all equity instruments (including bonds) which are traded in the stock exchanges is valued using the closing price as at the
reporting period,

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example, traded bonds, over-the counter derivatives) is determined using
valuation technigues which maximise the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity-specifie estimates. If all significant inputs required to
fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2,

Level 3: [fone or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3. This is the ease for unlisted cquity
securities.

Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for assets and liabilities as at March 31, 2022:

Q!’"’lefj Significant Significant
RhEE observable  unobservable
i inputs inputs

markets

{Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
Financial assets carried at amortised cost
Security depaosits - - 7.3149.50 T319.50
Loan to Employee (including interest acerued) - - 3315 53.13
Mon-current term deposit {including interest acerued) - - 14.22 14,22
Financial assets earried at FVTPL
Investments 1,639.40 - - 1,632.40
Financial liabilities carried at amortised cost
Loan from Others - 1.209.34 - 1,209.34
Finance Lease Obligation - - 28,594.70 28,594.70
Security deposit - - 6,573.77 6,573.77
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Q itative discl ey fair value ement hicrarchy for assets & liabilitics as at March 31, 2021:
Qf‘""" Significant Significant
pnc?s in observable  unobservable
active 2 2
ikt inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
Financial assets carried at amortised cost
Security deposits - - 5,067.48 506748
Loan to Employee (including interest acerued) - - 134.17 154.17
Non-current term deposit (including interest accrued) - - 496.74 496.74
Financial assets carried at FVTPL
Investments 4,213.63 - - 4,213.63
Financial liabilities carried at amortised cost
Loan from Others - 206.67 - 296.67
Finance Lease Obligation - - 25,879.86 2587986
Security deposit - - 4,180.75 4,180.75
Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for assets & liabilities as at April 01, 2020:
Quotd{d Signilicant Significant
pnl:t.-s o observable  unobservable
AChIvE inputs inputs
markets
{Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
Financial assets carried at amortised cost
Mon-current security deposils - - 5,080.63 5.080.63
Loan to Employee {including interest accrued) - - - -
Non-current term deposit {including interest accrued) - - 585.17 585.17
Financial assets carried at FVTPL
Investments 6,391.90 - - 6,391.90
Financial liabilities carried at amortised cost
Loan from Others - 1,314.24 - 131424
Finance Lease Obligation - - 27.419.40 27.419.40
Security deposit - - 4,644.67 4,644.67

C. Financial risk management

The Company has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instraments:

i. Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if'a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and ariscs

Trade Receivables and Loans

Customer credit risk is managed by the respective d
management. Credil quality of a customer is assessed based on individual credit limits as delined b

manitored.

y's established policy, procedures and control relating to customer eredit risk
¥ the company. Outstanding eustomer receivables are regularly

Less than More than 180 Total
180 days days
As at April 01, 2020
Gross carrying amount (A) 619.28 23,74 643.01
Expected credit loss (B) 3722 14.42 3164
Net carrying amount (A-B) 582,05 9.32 591.38
As at March 31, 2021
Ciross carrying amount (A) 1,506.63 83.67 1,590.30
Expected credit loss (B) 8.53 43.11 51.64
Net carrying amount (A-B) 1,498.10 40.56 1,538.66
As at March 31, 2022
Gross carrying amount (A) 3.618.60 24040 3,859.00
Expected credit loss (B) 425 RIRS
Net carrying amount (A-B) 3,618.60 157.55 3,776.15
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ii. Liquidity risk

Liguidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meering the obligations associated with its financial labilities that are settled by delivering
cash or another financial asset. The Company's approach to managing liquidity is to cnsure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meel its
liabilities when they are due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without ineutring unaceeptable losses or risking damage to the Company’s reputation.

Prudent liquidity risk went impli intaining sufficient cash and marketable securities and the availability of funding through an adequate amount of
committed credit facilities to meet obligations when due and to close out market positions.

Muturities of financial liabilities
The following are the remaining contractual maturitics of financial liabilitics at the reporting date. The amounts are gross and undiscounted, and excluding
contractual interest payments the impact of netting agreements,

Contractual cash Mows
Total Upto 1 year Between 1 Between2and — More than 5

As at March 31, 2022 and 2 years 5 years years
Borrowings 1,222.98 42298 400.00 400.00 -
Lease liabilitics 38,219.59 11.407.10 1065247 14,000.47 2,159.54
Employee related liability 578.59 578.59 L - =
Trade Payables 4,511.61 4,511.61 e - -
Others payables 1,344.62 1,344.62 - - -

Contractual cash Mows
Total Upto1 year Berween1l Between2and  More than 5

As at March 31, 2021 and 2 years 5 years vears
Borrowings 29395 271.37 22.58 - -
Lease liabilities 48,034.18 981459 11.407.10 21,350.97 5461.51
Employee related liability 184.02 184.02 - - "
Trade Payables 2,776.51 2,776.50 - - -
Others payables 599.23 399.23 B - -

Contractual cash Nows
Total Upto 1 year Between1 Between2and  More than 5

Asat April 01. 2020 and 2 years 5 years years
Borrowings 1,319.73 1,026.21 270.97 22.58 -
Lease liabilities 56,289.46 8,255.27 9.814.59 28,950.88 9,268.71
Emplayee related linbility 2,39 239 - - -
Trade Payables 1,324.20 1.324,19 - . 2
Others payahles 467,21 467.21 - - -

The interest payments on variable interest rate loans in the table above reflect current interest rates at the reporting date and these amounts may change as market
interest rates change.

iit. Market risk

Market nisk is the risk that changes in market prices — such as foreign exchange rates and inlerest rates — will affect the Company’s income or the value of its
holdings of financial instruments, The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while
optimising the return. The Company does not uses derivatives to manage market risks.

iv. Currency risk
The eurrency risk is the exchange-rate risk, arises from the change in price of one currency in relation to another. The company is not exposed to foreign cutrency
transactions, hence there is no associated currency risk.

v. Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates, The Company
exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company's long-term debt obligations with floating interest rates. The Company
having a fixed loans and borrowings.
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Employees' stock option plan

The shareholders of the Company approved “Awfis Employees’ Stock Option Scheme 20157 (EDSOP 20157 at the Extraordinary General
Meeting held on on June 15, 2015 to grant a maximum of not exceeding 5% of the equity share capital of the company to specified
categories of employees of the Company. Each option granted and vested under EDSOP 2015 shall entitle the holder to acquire one equity
share of face value of Rs. 10 each of the Company.

The options granted under EDSOP 20135 shall vest uniformly over the period of four year commencing one year after the date of grant as per
terms and conditions specified in option grant letters.

The Company accordingly granted 981,507 options at an exercise price of Rs, 10 per option, 325,436 options at an exercise price of Rs.
27.78 per option and 172,555 options at an exercise price of Rs, 54 per option to eligible employees till date. Out of the total options issued,
671,540 have been cancelled till date.

The fair value of the share options is estimated at the grant date using the Black- Scholes option pricing model, taking into account the terms
and conditions upon which the share options were granted. However, the above performance condition is only considered in determining the
number of instruments that will ultimately vest.

{A) Details of options granted under EDSOP 2015 are as below:

Grant Grant date Number of  Number of Exercise Fair value at
Options options Price grant date (in
granted outstanding (in INR) INR)

Ist Grant l6-Jun-15 102,957 27,570 10.00 2778

2nd Grant 02-Jan-16 79,000 39,500 10.00 27.78

3rd Grant 25-Jul-16 624,350 180,001 10.00 27.78

4th Grant 25-Feb-17 175,200 62,101 10.00 27.78

5th Grant 25-Feb-17 95.436 - 27.78 2778

6th Grant 01-Apr-19 220,000 220,000 27.78 162.70

7th Grant 01-Oct-20 172,555 145,860 54.00 162.70

#th Grant 01-Apr-21 10,000 10,000 27.78 162.70

(B) The movement of stock options during the period/vear (in No's)* :

Particulars As at March 31, AsatMarch Asat April 01,
2022 31,2021 2020

Balance at the beginming of the year 763,190 1,153,789 1,053,085
Granted during the year 10,000 172,555 220,000
Vested/exercisable during the year 100,664 78,858 393,356
Forfeiture/surrender/brought back during the year 88,158 563,154 119,296
Exercised during the year - - -

Balance at the end of the year 685,032 763,190 1,153,789

(C) Disclosures as per IND AS 102 for outstanding options

Particulars As at March 31, Asat March As at April 01,
2022 31,2021 2020
Weighted average exercise price for outstanding options 2534 25.07 13.39
Weighted average remaining contractual life for outstanding options (in years) 0.34 0.67 0.29
Range of exercise prices for outstanding options 10.00-54.00  10.00-54.00 10.00-27.78

(D) The key assumption used to estimate the fair value of stock option as on grant date:

Grant Date Dividend Risk-free interest Expected life Expected
Yield rate of options volatility
granted in
years
01.0ct-20 0.00% 6.65% 11 85.00%
0.00% 6.87% 12 85.00%
0.00% 6.77% 13 83.00%
0.00% 6.72% 14 §5.00%
01-Apr-21 0.00% 7.16% 12 85.00%
0.00% 713% 13 85.00%
0.00% 7.02% 14 85.00%
0.00% 7.05% 15 85.00%

*The expected life of the stock is based on historical data and current expectations and is not necessarily indicative of exercise patterns that
may oceur. The expected volatility reflects the assumption that the historical volatility over a period similar to the life of the options is
indicative of future trends, which may also not necessarily be the actual outcome.
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Leases

The Company has adopted Ind AS 116, effective annual reporting period beginning April 01, 2020 and has applied the standard to its leases,
maodified approach, with the cumulative cffect of initially applying the standard, recognised on the date of initial application {April 1, 2020) as
an adjustment to the opening balance of retained carnings as on April 1, 2020,

On transition, the Company recognised a lease liability measured at the present value of the remaining lease payments, The right-of-use asset is
recognised at its carrying amount as if the standard had been applied since the commencement of the lease, but discounted using the lessee’s
incremental borrowing rate as at April 01, 2020. Accordingly, a right-of-use asset of Rs 20,039.68 and a corresponding lease liability of Rs
25,187.73 has been recognized. The cumulative effect on transition in retained earni ngs is Rs 5,148.05 . The principal portion of the lease
payments have been disclosed under cash flow from financing activities.

On application of Ind AS 116, the nature of expenses has changed from lease rent in previous periods to depreciation cost for the right-of-use
asset, and finance cost for interest accrued on lease liability.

(a) Company as lessee

The Company leases office premises. These leases typically run for 5-10 years which is further extendable on mutual agreement by both lessor
and lessee,

Information about the leases for which the Company is a lessee is presented below:

Right-of-use assets:
Sct out below are the carrying amounts of Right-of-use assets and the movement during the year:

Particulars

Right of use as at April 01, 2020

Right to use assels on operating leases 20,039.68
Reclassification of asset on lease earlier under head property, plant and equipment 1,965.52
Reclassification of prepaid portion of security deposit account of adoption of Ind AS |16 1,064.66
Total right of use as at April 01, 2020 23,069.86
Addition during the year 5.087.36
Deletion during the year (2,884.17)
Depreciation (4,862.47)
Lease modification (121,21}
Total right of use as at March 31, 2021 20,289.87
Addition during the year 8,781.53
Deletion during the year -
Depreciation (7,152.09)
Lease modification (54.24)
Total right of use as at March 31, 2022 21,865.08

Lease liabilities:
Sct out below are the carrying amounts of lease liabilities and the movement during the year:

Particulars

Lease liabilities as at April 01, 2020

Lease liabilities on operating leases 25,187.73
Reclassification of lease liability earlier under borrowing 2,231.67
Total lease liabilities as at April 01, 2020 2741940
Addition during the year 4,986.98
Deletion during the year (1,031.07)
Accretion of interest 4,030,74
Payments (including interest) (8.363.33)
COVID-19 related rent concessions (1.041.65)
Lease modification (121.21)
Total lease liabilities as at March 31, 2021 25,879.86
Addition during the year 8.333.66
Deletion during the year (R1.94)
Accretion of interest 4271.71
Payments (including intercst) {8,857.40)
COVID-19 related rent concessions {957.19)
Total lease liabilities as at March 31, 2022 28,594.70

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is given in Note 36 in the ‘Liquidity risk’ section,




As at As at As at
March 31,2022 March 31,2021 April 01, 2020

Current 1.736.70 1,271.82 3,440.72
Non-current 26,858.00 24,608.04 23,978.68
28,594.70 25,879.86 27,419.40

The effective interest rate for lease liabilities is 13% (March 31, 2021: 16%: April 01, 2020: 16%)

Below are the amounts recognised by the Company in the statement of profit and loss:

Pl Year ended Year ended
March 31,2022  March 31, 2021
Depreciation of right-of-use assets 7.152.09 4,862.47
Interest on lease liabilities 4.277.71 4,271.71
Variable lease payments not included in the measurement of lease liabilitics 1.920.52 1,184.79
Expenses relating to leases of low-value assets and short-term leases 80.43 380,34
Total 13,430.75 10,705.31
Below is the amount recognised by the Company in the stat t of cash flows:
P Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Cash outflow included in financing activity for repayment of principal during the year 4,579.68 4,332.55
Cash outflow included in financing activity for repayment of interest during the year 4,277.71 4,030.74

Cash flows from operating activities include cash flows from shori-term lease and leases of low-value assets. Cash flows from financing
activities include the payment of interest and the principal portion of lease liabilitics.

The Company has several lease contracts that include extension and termination options. These options are negotiated by management to
provide flexibility in managing the leased-asset portfolio and align with the Company’s business necds. Management exercises significant
Judgement in determining whether these extension and termination options are reasonably certain to be exercised,

{b) Company as lessor
The Company has given its office premises through operating lease arrangements. Income from operating leases is recognised as revenue on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

Lease income of Rs. 18,438.69 (March 31. 2021: Rs. 15.293.31) has been recognised in revenue from operation in the statement of profit or loss.

Future minimum rentals receivable under non-cancellable operating leases as at 31 March are as follows:

2022 2021
Within one year - =
Afler one year but not more than five years 85.17 -
More than five years - )

(This space has been left blank intentionally)
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39 Unrecognised tax assets

The Company has brought forward losses under the Income-tax Act, 1961. The Company recognises deferred tax assets only when it is
probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductable temporary differences can be utilised therfore, no deferred tax

assets has been recognised in the standalone balance sheet.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arc attributable to the following

Deferred tax (assets)

Lease Liabiity

Term loan

Brought forward business loss
Unabsorbed depreciation
Share Based Payment Reserve

Deferred tax (liabilities)

Right-of-use assets
Investment in mutual fund

Effective Tax reconciliation

Loss for the year
Applicable tax rate

Tax expense should be
Unrecognised tax assct
Earlier year tax provision
Tax expense

Tax as per books
Current tax

Tax adjustment relating to prior years

Deferred Tax

As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
7,197.29 6,707.30
1.04 2.07
3,752.06 3,519.61
1,748.68 1,229.94
128.56 100.46
12,827.63 11,559.38
As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
5,503.44 5,106.96
18.35 53.68
5,521.79 5,160.64
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
(5,715.59) (4,264.26)
25.17% 25.17%
(1,438.61) (1,073.32)
1,438.61 1,073.32

{This space kas been left blank intentionally)
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(l;

(i)

(i)

0]

(i)

(ifiy

(iv)

First Time Adoption of Ind AS

A stated in note 2 significant accounting policics, these are the Commpany’s fist o bedated fancial prepared in avcordance with Ind AS,

The accounting policics set oul in nute 2.1 have been applicd in preparing the standalone fancial statemants for the year ended March 31, 2022, the comparative mfvrmation presented m
these standalone fancial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021 and in the prepamtion of an opening Ind AS balance sheet at April (1, 2020 {the Company™s date of transition). In
proparing its apening Ind AS statement of fmancisl position, the Company has adjusied amounts reporicd previously in dalone financial prepared i accordanee with Indian
GAAP (previous GAAPY An exp iot of how the ition from previous GAAP 10 Ind AS has affected the Company's balence sheet, statement of profit or loss and cash flows is scl

out in the follewing tables and the notes thas accompany the tables.

Exemptions and exceptions availed
Set oui below are the applicable Ind AS 101 oprional 1ons and datory prions applied in the transition from previons GAAP to Ind AS.

Ind AS optional exemptions

Leemed cost

Ind AS 101 permits 3 firsi-time adopter to eleet to continue with the carrying vabee for all of its property, plant and equi ay ised i the 1 fingnial a8 at
the date of transition to nd AS, measured a5 per the previous GAAP and use that s its deemed cost us at the dute of ransition afer making necessary adjustments for decommissioning
liabilities, This exemption can also be used for intangible assets covered by Ind A5 38 Intangible Assets.

plint and equs and intangible assets at their previous GAAP carrying value,

Accordingly, the Company has elected to measure all of its p

Leases

Ind A5 116 requires an entity 1o assess whether o contract or arrangement containg a lease. In accordance with Tnd AS 116, ot the inception of the contract, an entity shall nssess whether
thee contract is, or contains, 4 lease, Ind AS 101 provides an option 1o make this assessment on the basis of facts and eircumstances existing at the dute of ransition to Ind AS, except where
the effect is expected to be not material, The Company has elecied to apply ihis ptivn for such i

Sharc based payment
Ted AS 101 permits o first-time adopter not to apply requirement of i AS 102 "Share-based payment™ o cquity instraments that vested hefore date of transition o Tnd ASs. It alss
provides an exemption, te nat gpply Ind AS 102 "share based payment™ to labilities arising from share-based i thar were seitled before the date of transitien 10 Tnd AS:

Ind AS mandatory exceptions

Estimates
An entity’s estimates in accordance with Ind ASs at the date of transition to Ind AS shall be consistent with estimates made for fhe same date in accordance with previous GAAP {after
adjustments te reflect any difference in accounting policies). unless there is ohjecti i that those esti WErE in error.

Ind AS estimates as at April 01, 2020 are consistent with the estimates as af the same date made in conformily with previous GAAP. The Company made estimales for Impairmient of
limancial assets based on expected eredit loss model in sccordance with Ind AS at the date of transition 25 these were fut required under previous GAAP,

Initial recognition of financial asset
A entity may apply the requirements in paragraph B3| 2A (b} of Ind AS 109 prospectively to trnsactions entered into on or after the date of transition to Ind ASs.

Impairment of financial asset

At the dats of transition to I AS, the Campany has determined that there is significant increase in eredit risk since the imitial recognition of a tinancial instrument would require undye cost
or effort. the Company his recognised a loss allowinee ot an amount cqual to lifetime expected eredit losses at cach reporting date until that financial instrument is derceognised (unless
thit financial instrument i bow credit risk at a reporting date).

Classification and measurement of financial ussets

Financial assets like sccurity deposits received and secunity deposits paid, has been chissified and measured at amortised cost on the basis of the facts and cireumstances that exist at the
dare of transition 1o Ind AS. Since, it is impracticable for the Company to apply retrospectively the effective interest method in Tnd AS 109, the fair value of the financial asset or the
financial liabiliy ar the date of ition ro Ind AS by applyi ised cost methad, has been considered as the new gross carrying amount of that financinl asset or the financial liability
at the date of ransition 1o Il AS.

(Thes space has been foft blank itentionaifv)
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LAl amounts in Rs. lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

C. Reconciliations between previous GAAP and Ind AS

Ind AS 10 requires an entity 1o reconcile equity. total comprehensive income and eash flows for prior periads. The following tables represent the reconcibiations from previeus GAAP 10 Ind AS

Reconciliation of equity
Particulars Note As at April 01, 2020 | As at March 31, 2021 |
Particulars Pé:‘r;'f Adjustments Ind AS]  Previous GAAP® Adjustments Ind ASI
ASSETS
Non-turrent asscts
Property. plant and equipment (i} 9351 26 (L.963.51) T.585.75 U6a0.73 - 964073
Capital work-in-progress 12573 - 12573 1324 - 13.24
Other intangible assets 4780 - 4780 34 85 - 54.83
Right-of-usc assuis ) - 23,069 86 2306986 - 2028987 20,289 87
Financial assets = = = = =
(1) Investments - - - - - -
{11} Chiber financial assets fc) Az) 382141 {2.235.13) 338628 .54 44 (LOTL22) 487327
Mon-current tax assets {net) - 1521.55 Hl3.99 - 61300
Other non-current assets ich 25.76 12841 22186 62,76 284 63
Total Non-current assets 18,170.40 18,894.98 37,065.38 16,489.18 19.281.42 35,7760
Current assets
Inventorics 1542 - 1542 47 20047
Financial assers
(i) Isvestmonts f) ARZRT S6T0R 4,391.90 377143 42 421363
(ii) Trade receivables 59138 = 39138 1.53%.66 1,338,660
{iii} Cash and cash cquivalents [T - .6y 6K 54 G654
(v} Other bank balances 30947 - 3047 322103 = 322103
(v} Other financial asscts fc) Ae) 7112 1.337.63 2R T5 74035 7324 Bl360
Crther current assets (e} 1,358 67 117.70 1.476.37 4015225 25421 431046
Total Current assets 9,517.54 2.042.41 11.559.95 14,312.73 774.66 15,087.39
Total assets 27.687.94 20,937.39 45,625.33 30,801.91 20.056.08 50.857.99
it i St Ed
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital {1) 17.072 .66 (14,059 .25) XY 17.146.41 (14.133.00) 301341
Other cquity feh . () (10,250.32) 1968230 $431 98 (15.032.05) 27.093 89 12.061 .84
Tatal equity 581234 5.623.05 11,445.39 2,114.36 12,960.89 15,075.25
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Fimancial Liabilitics
(1) Borrowing (a) (hi () 821598 (7.919.71) 296.27 15.003.08 {15,063 63) 2645
(i} Lease liabilitics i = 23.978.68 2397808 - 2460804 24,608 04
{iii) Other financial labilities ib} 3.768.66 85556 462422 269237 1.399.96 £.002 33
Provisinng 7500 7300 10737 - 107.37
Other non-current habilities (b} 229257 {1,774 .49) S18.08 310007 (2.634.01) 467 06
Total Non-current liabilities 14,352.21 15,140.04 19,492.25 20,994.09 831036 19,304.45
Current liabilities
Fnancial Liabilitics
(1} Barrowing fa), (hy, (j) 1026 21 (8.24) Loi.eT 27137 (4.15) 267,22
(i) Lease labilities () i 344072 344072 - 1.271.82 1.271.82
(i) Trade pavables - - - - - -
= total outstanding dues of micro .30 - 2136 21.39 - 2139
emerprises and small cnterprises.
- total outstanding dues of ereditors other 1.302.80 - 1.302.80 27551 c.
then micro enterprises and small enterprises; 273511
{iv) Other financial labalitics {b) 381135 {3.321.30) 490,05 312050 {2.248.83) 87167
Provisions 13407 - 13407 213 80 - 2380
Other current liabil b} 1.217.5% 6311 |, 280 64 1311.29 (234.02) 1.077.27
Taotal Current liabilities 7.513.40 174.29 7.687.69 7,693.46 {1,215.18) 6,478, 28
Total equity and liabilities 27,687.94 20.937.39 48,615.33 30,801.91 20,056.07 50,857.98

(Thes space has been left blank intentionaliy)
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Reconciliation of tutal comprehensive income for the year ended 31 March 2021

Particulars Note Previous GAAP® Adjustments Reclassifications Ind AS
Revenoe

Revenue from operations 17.835.98 - - 1783598
{(Hher meome {b). <), () 121489 155143 - 3.765.92
Total income 20.050.87 1.551.03 e 21.601.90
Expenses

(it} Rent ([} G704 (R.00738) {1.756,73) ({R111)
(h) Sub-contracting cost 963,52 - - 963,52
(c) Cost of wraded goody sold 13907 - - 13907
{d) Changes in inventories of traded gomds (5.05) - - (5.015)
{c) Employee henefil expense (e}, (g 3.168.75 14.93 - 318368
() Finance costs {a), (b (el (di, () 326.8% 43862 - 4.635.50
(2} Depreciation und amontization expense L] 2H02.42 578112 - B6R1.54
() Other expenses el thh i) 663853 {148,363 1.756.73 K245
Total expenses 23.898.23 1,967.43 - 25.866.16
Profit before tax (3.847.36) (416.90) = {4,264.26)|
Income Tax expense - = - -
Profit for the vear (3,847.36) (416.540) - (4,264.26)

Other comprehensive income
Trermis that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

(a) Remeasurements of the defined benefit plans - {587y - {5.87)
(b} Remersurements of changes in fair value of cquity instruments [y - - - -
{c} Income tax relating to these tems = = = =
(Total other comprehensive income = {5.87) - (5.87)
Total comprehensive income for the year (3,847.36) (422.77) - 4 ,2?0.13__1]
]
Reconciliation of Statement of Cash Flow for the year ended 31st March, 2021
Particulars Previous GAAP* Adjustments Ind ASl
Net Cash flow [romd{used in) Cperating Activitics {2.145.16) 938,20 6. 79304
Met Cash Dow fromviused in) Investing Activities {2,653.55) (H96.12) 4545 6T
Met Cash flow fronviused in) Financing Activities &, 106, B (® 4207 -1 84147
[Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 30188 it JLRY
(Cash and Cash equivalents al the Beginning of the Period Bt 6y iy B, Bl
(Cash and Cash equivalents o1 the End of the Period 964,55 0.0 YHR.55
*The previous GAAP figures have been reclassified to conform Lo Ind A% g for the pury ol s note.
Reconciliation of total other equity as at March 31, 2021 and April 01, 2020
Asat As at
March 31, 2021 April 01, 2020
Total other equity as per Previous GAAP {15.032.05) 111.250.32)
Equity comy of the Compulsarily ible preii share 13,938.77 13.866.29
Exquity comy of the Comy ily ible deh 14,835.00 700151
Depreciation on ROL assct (18.075.67) 112.294.36)
Interest expenscs on Jeuse Habiliy (13.079.2%) (9.197.52)
Reversul of rent expenses 23,14R.76 16,278 56
Interest mcome on security deposil paid 55202 inl33
Reversal of lewse equilisation reserve 367659 2.639.41
Reversal of brokeruge 46,13 3477
Interest expense on security deposit from customer (722.42) {283.78)
Adpustment of amortisation of advance rent 762,73 31175
Gain an fair valuaiten of investement in mutual finds TR(L33 36T
Adi of EIR on b ing (Reversal of excess finance cost) {272} 5.52
Reversal of ssue cost (Netted off from CCD & CCPS) 420.64 29164
Reversal of gain on sale of mutual fund {338.12) -
Expenses on loan to employee (2.20) -
(Covid concession income L4163 -
Interest accrued on loan o employee 257 o
Total other couity as per Ind AS 12,061.84 5,43 1.98
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Awlis Space Solutions Private Limited

Notes to

ifi inl for the yvear ended Muarch 31, 2022

CIN No. U74999DL2014PTCI74236
(Al amounts in Rs, lakis, unbess otheraise stated)

Reconciliation of total comprehensive ineome for the year ended Murch 31, 2021

Yeur ended
March 31, 2021

(Net loss as per Previous GAAP {3,847.36)
Drepreciation on ROU assel (5.781.12)
Tnletest expenses on ease liabiliy (3.851.73)
Reversal of rent expenses booked in P&EL 5.970.20
Covid concessin income 1.041.65
Interest income on seeurily deposit paid 150,70
Reversl of lease cquilisation reserve LO37.18
Interest expense on sccunty deposit (rom customer {438.64)
Adjustment of amortisation ol advance rent 440 98
Ciain on fair valuaiton of investment in muwal fimds 21325
Reversal of issue ¢ost (Netted off from COD & COPS) 138,00
Addjustment of EIR on borrowing (Reversal of excess (inance cost) (5.24
|Reversal of gain on sale of muteal Tund {338,12)
Cxpenses on loan o employee (2.200)
Interest Ineome o loan 1o Employee bui ¥
Reversal of brokerage 1136
Incremental ESOP expense based on fair vakue (1561
(Other comprehensive income 547
Net loss as per Ind AS {4,264.26)
Notes to first-time adoption:

Borrowings

Ind AS 109 requires Transaction costs incurred towards origination of b ings 10 be ded i from the carrying amount of ¢ ings on initial itien. € ponding impact of
interest expenses resulting from the aforesaid adjustment 1o the extent relating 1o qualifying asset was eapitalised in propeny, plant and cquip and ining amount is znised in

the profit or loss over the tenure of the borrowing as part of the interest expense by applying the effective interest method. The resulting decrease in profit of Rs. 8.24 in March 31, 2021
and increase in profit Rs. 5.52 i Apnil 01, 2020,

Security d from

Under the previows GAAP, intersst free sccurity deposits! retention money {that are refundable in cash on pletion of the contract) are recorded at their transaction value, Under Tnd AS,
ull financial Gabilities are required to be recognised at fair value. Accordingly, the Company has fair valusd these secunty deposits under Ind AS. Difference between the fair value and
transaction value of the security deposit has been recognised as a rediction to the relevant expenditure, The resulring inferest expense booked with of Rs, 436,64 in and K5 283.78 and
rental income booked with Rs 434.56 and Rs 440.95 in March 31, 2021 and April 01, 2020 respectively.

Security deposits paid

Under the previous GAAP, interest free security deposits (thar sre refindable in cash on completion of the contract) are recorded a1 their transaction value, Under Ind AS, ull financial asset
are reguired to be recognised o fusr value, A dingly, the Company has fair valued these security deposits under Ind AS. Difference between the fair value and transaction value of the
security deposit has been pnised as a reduction to the relevant expenditure. The resulting interest income which increase in profic of Rs. 19070 in March 31, 2021 wnd inerease in
prafit Rs, 36133 in Apeil 011, 2020 and rent expense which reduce profit of Rs 43.52 in March 31, 2021 and 30.70 in Apri 01, 2020,

R of post- benefit obligati

Under Ind AS, remeasurcments e, actuarial gains and losses and the relurn on plan assets, excluding amounts included in the nel interest expense on the net defined benelil lishility are
wnised in other T ive income insiead of profit or Joss. Under the previous GAAP, these remessurements were forming part of the profit or loss for the year, Other
prehensive income reengnised in March 11, 2021 of Rs. 5.87.

Shure-based payments
Under Indian GAAP, the Company was recognising share based payment expense a5 per intrinsic value method for its emplovees. Ind AS requires the fair value of the share eptions to be
determined using an appropriate pricing model recognised over the vesting perivd, The resulting decrease m profit of Bs. 18.61 in March 31, 2021 and Ks 46,56 in Apnil 01, 2020,

Investment in mutual funds
Under lndian GAAP, investment in munsal funds were valued at cost of net realisable value whichever is Tower, As per nd AS, it is valued at fair value through profit and loss with a
corresputiding decrease in profit for the year ended March 31, 2021 of Rs. 21325 and retained earmings increased as an Agpril 1, 2020 of Rs. 567.08

Employee loan

Under Indiun GAAP, employee loan are ded at their ion vatue, Under Ind AS. all linancial ussets are required w be recognised at fair vale, Accordingly, the Company has fair
vitlued these employee loan under Ind AS. Difference between the fair value and Iransaction valie of the employee loan has heen recognised as prepaid salary. The resulting decrease in
profitaf Rs. 2.200 i March 31, 2021 and Nil in April 01, 2020

Compulsory Convertible Debenture (CCHY

Under Indisn GAAP, CCD are clussified as long teem liability whereas under Ind AS the conversion feature of the debenture’s exact principal amount into fixed number of Equity shares
tieets the “fined to fived™ eriteria and hence shall be recognized as “Other Equity” until actual conversion, Equity shall be recogmized nct of transsetion costs incurred at the tine of jssue.
The Interest payments shall be recopnived as financial liability, however, its g woull he insigni pased fo the Eguity ¢

Based on above, enlire CCD instrument. considering the i 1 lbility Ty omtire 1 could be § as Equity i . The resulting increase in profit of Rs.
136.72 in Mareh 31, 2021 and Ks. 98,69 in April 01, 2020,

Compulsory convertible preference shares (CCPS)

Under fndian GAAP, preference share capital i3 classificd as share capital whereas under Ind AS the terms of the COPS agreement provide for conversion of entire prmcipal amount of the
Preference Shares in the fixed ratio of equity shares at the end of the contrazt term, thus the instrument meets the “fixed 1 fxed” criteria. The COPS shall be recogrized as “Equity” snd
shall be preseated as part of “Chber Equity” in the Ind AS financial statements. The resulting increase in profit af Rs. |28 in March 31, 2021 and Rs, 1929 in April 01, 2020,

Lease
Operating lease: Under Indian GAAP, the Company revoprises rent expense on 3 steaight line basis over the lease term.

On transition, the Company recognised i lease liability measuted at the present value of the ining lease p The right-of-usc asset i tsed at it currying amount as il the
standard hud been applied sinee the commencement of the lease, but discounted using the lessee’s incremental borowing rate as al April 01, 2020, Accordingly, » right-of-use asset of Rs
20,059.68 and a eorresponding lease lability of Rs 25.187.73 has been gnized. The lative effeet on Iransition in retained carnings is Ry 5.048.05 . The principal ponion of the
lease payments have been disclosed under cash flow from linancing activitics.

On application of Ind AS 116, the nature of cxpenses has changed from lease rent in previons periods to depreciation cost far the right-of-use asser, and finance cost for intcrest accrued on

leasze liability,

Deferred Tax
Deferred tax have been recopnised on the adjustments made on transition to Tnd AS,

Retained Earnings
Retained carnings as at April 1, 2020 has been adjusted conseyuent to the abuve Ind AS transition adjustments.
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5 1 by Schedule 111 of Companics Act 2013, by way of additional information:
E.Y. 2021-22
Net Assets i.e. total assets minus total Share in Loss Share in other Comprehensive  Share in total Comprehensive Loss
lizshilities Income
Name of entities Asa % of Amount Asa%of  Amount Asa % of Amount Asa % of Amount
consolidated profit consolidat consolidated consolidated profit
ed profit profit
Parent:
Awfis Space Solutions Private limited 90.74% 944733 90.83% (5, 715.59) 100% {21.15) LRI (5,726.20)
Subsidiary:
Awliv living Solutions Private limited 0.26% 2479 0.18% (10.54) 0% - 0.18% {10.54)
Total 100% 947212 100% 15,726.13) 100% (21.15) L00% (5,736.74)
F.Y. 2020-21
Net Assets Le. total assets minus total Share in Loss Share in other Comprehensive  Share in total Comprehensive Loss
Tiabilities Income
Name of entities Asa % of Amount  Asa®of  Amount Asa % of Amount As # % of Amount
consolidated profit consolidat consolidated eonsolidated profit
ed profit profit
Parent:
Awfis Space Solutions Privare limited 100.00%, 1507493 99.97% (4,263.02) 100% (3.87) AT {4,268.89)
Subsidiary:
Awliv living Solutions Private limited 0,013 033 0.03% {1.24) 0% - (.03% {1.24)
Tatal L00%, 1507526 100% ~4,264.26 100% -5.87 100%, -1,270.13
As at April 01, 2020
Net Assets i.e. total assets minus total Share in Loss Share in other Comprehensive  Share in total Comprehensive Loss
liahilities Income
Name of entities Asa % of Amount Asa%of  Amount Asa % of Amount As a % of Amount
consolidated profit consolidat consolidated consolidated profit
ed profit profit
Parent:
Awfis Space Solutions Private limited 100.02% 1144783 0.00% 0% - 0.00% -
Subsidiary:
Awliv living Solutions Private limited -0.02% (2.44)  0.00% - 0% - 0005 -
Tatal 100 11.445.39 0% - %% - 0% -
42 The Codle on Social Security 2020 (Code). which received the Presidential Assent on § I s

28, 2020, subsumes nine laws relating to social security, retirement and employee benefits,

including the Employce Provident Fund and Miscellancous Provisions Act. 1952 and the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, The effective date of the Cade is yet to be notified, The Company
will assess the impact of the Code when it comes into effect and will record related impact thercon,

43 Subsequent events

Subsequent to the reporting date before the apy 1 of financial ts, the C

y has issued 45,05,397 Senes k C

“

having face value of Rs 100/- per share ar a premium of Rs 44.27/-, on private placement basis, resulting infusion of the fund in the Company.

(This space has heen Jeft blank intentionally)
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As per our report of even date atiached

For 5.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP

44 Other statutory information

(i) The Company does not have any Benami property, where any procesding has been initisted or pending sgainst the Ciroup [or holding any Benomi propenty under the Benami Transactions
(Prohibition) Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

tii) The Company has balance with the below-mentioned companies struck off under section 248 of Companies Act, 2013 or scction 560 of Companies Act, 1956,

Name of the Struck off Company Nature of Relationship with the March 31, 2022 Murch 31, 2021
Transaction struck off company
Tr iom for | Out ling Tr: ti O ling
the year Balange® Balance
1. Whinge Media Private Limiicd Revenue Customer .02 (0.03) 337 025
4.55 0.14 1021 0.04
2. LS Software Private Limited Revenue Customer e
: . . v g 021 - - =
3. Shivam Knowledge Solutions Private Limited Revenue Customer

* Negutive balances represent advances
{iii} The Company do not have any charges or satisfaction which is ¥el o be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period.

(iv} The Company has not traded or invested in Cryptocurency transactions / balances or Virtual Currency during the financial year ended March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021,
{v) The Company have not advanced or loaned or invested funds to Intermediaries for further advancing to any other person(s) or entitylies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with
the understandine that the Ultimate beneficiaries shatl:

(a) direetly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company { Ultimate Bencficiaries) or

(b) pravide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiarics,

(vi} The Company has not received any funds of further advances in form of any fund (rom any persen(s) or entity(ies), i

luding guaranice 1o the Ultimate beneficiaries.
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